
City clerk rue N0. Ord- 13-062 

Agenda No. 3-A 
lst Readinge 

IERSQ 
Agenda No. l’l*A· 2nd Reading & Final Passage O J" 

Ar O 
F H ORDINANCE ”i 

OF Jipokm at 

]ERSEY CITY, N.], I 

COUNCIL AS A WHOLE
l

`

. 

offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance: 

CITY ORDINANCE 13-062 2 AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING CHAPTER 332(VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC) 
TITLE; ARTICLE III(PARKING, STANDING AND STOPPING) OF THE JERSEY CITY 

CODE AMENDING SECTION 332-24(PARKING PROHIBITED CERTAIN 
HOURS) DESIGNATING 25 FEET IN THE VICINITY OF THE ENTRANCE TO 
FRESENIUS MEDICAL CENTER, 27-29 COTTAGE STREET AS NO PARKING »» 

5:00 A.M. TO.11 :00 P.M., MONDAY THROUGH SATURDAY 

THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES ORDAIN:
· 

1. Chapter 332 (Vehicles and Traffic) Article III (Parking, Standing and Stopping) ofthe Jersey City Code is hereby 
supplemented as follows: 

Section 332-24 PARKING PROHIBITED CERTAIN HOURS 
No person shall park a vehicle between the hours specified upon any of the streets or parts 
thereof listed below. 

I 

Days 
Name of Street Side of Week Hours Limits 

Cottage St South All days 8:00 a.m. to Summit Av 90 feet west 
5:00 p.m. 

M— Sat 5:00 a.m. to 325 west of Summit Av 25 feet west 
. I I:00 p.m.

A 

2. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed. 
_ A _; . _ 

.. 3. This ordinance shall be a part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and incorporated in the official copies of the` ·\ \§~ —¥~ ‘ `
. 

Jersey City Code.
_ 

4. The City Clerk and the Corporation Counsel may change any chapter numbers, article numbers and section numbers if 
codification of this ordinance reveals a conflict between those numbers and the existing code, in order to avoid confusion` 

and possible accidental repealers of existing provisions. 
if 

NOTE: All new material to be inserted is underscored. 
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FACT SHEET ` 

This summary sheet is to be attached to the front of any ordinance, resolution, cooperation 
agreement or contract that is submitted for Council consideration. Incomplete or sketchy summary 
sheets will be returned with the resolution or ordinance. The Department, Division or Agency 
responsible for the overall implementation of the proposed project or program should provide a 
concise and accurate statement of facts. 

1. Full title of ordinance/resolution/cooperation agreement: 
AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING CHAPTER 332(VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC) ARTICLE 
III(PARKING, STANDING AND STOPPING) OF THE JERSEY CITY CODE AMENDING SECTION 
332-24(PARKING PROHIBITED CERTAIN HOURS) DESIGNATING 25 FEET IN THE VICINITY

` 

OF THE ENTRANCE TO FRESENIUS MEDICAL CENTER, 27-29 COTTAGE STREET AS NO 
PARKING, 5:00 A.M. TO ll_:00 P.M., MONDAY THROUGH SATURDAY 

2. Name and title of person initiating the ordinance/resolution, etc.: 
Lee D. Klein, P.E., PTOE, Assistant City Engineer, Division of Engineering, Traffic and Transportation, 
Department of Public,Works, 20l.547.4440 at the request of Charles J. Harrington, III, Connell Foley 
LLP, Harborside Financial Center, 2510 Plaza Five, JCNJ, 201.521.1000, on behalf of Bio-Medical 
Applications of New Jersey, Inc. d/b/a Fresenius Medical Care Jersey City. ‘ 

3. Concise description of program, project or plan proposed in the ordinance/resolution: 
‘ 

Designate 25 feet in front of the Fresenius»Medical Care located at 27-29 Cottage Street as “no parking, 
5:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m., Monday through Saturday". 

4. Reasons (need) for the proposed program, project, etc.: 
This facility will house a kidney dialysis center where 70% of the patients are transported to and from the 
Center by a medical transport van. 

_ 5. Anticipated benefits to the community: 
This no parking area will provide a location for the medical transport van to drop-off and pick-up the 
dialysis patients safely and conveniently. 

6. Cost of proposed program, project, etc. (Indicate the dollar amount of City, state, and Federal 
Funds to be used, as well as match and in-kind contribution: 
Approximately $100.00 per u·post and sign installation. 
Two (2) signs and one (1) u-posts are needed at a total cost of $300.00 

7. Date proposed program, or project will commence: 
Pending adoption by the Jersey City Municipal Council 

8. Anticipated completion date:
' 

Twenty days after adoption by the Jersey City Municipal Council 

9. Person responsible for coordinating proposed program, project, etc.: 
Patricia Logan, Supervising Traffic Investigator, Division of Engineering, Traffic and Transportation, 
Department of Public Works, 201.547.4492 

10. Additional comments: 

Based on the inijormatio rovided to me, I certify that all the facts presented herein are accurate, 
to the best o k {wh e. 
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I I O Ordmance of the C1ty of ]€1‘S ey C1ty, NJ. 
ORDINANCE Mo. Qrd 13435; 

Og 
YERSQP 

_ 3, A. MAY 8 2013 7* A- |-E 
TITLE. 

A, ciilll ,,, O 

,5 An ordinance supplementing Chapter 332(Vehicles and Traffic) .|;.;|. 
Article lll (Parking, Standing and Stopping) of the Jersey City O i|f X, Code amending Section 332-24 (Parking Prohibited Certain 04*1,0

_ 

B SY? Hours) designating 25 feet in the vicinity ofthe entrance to RAT 
Fresenius Medical Center, 27-29 Cottage Street as No Parking 
5:00 a.m. to ll:00 p.m., Monday through Saturday. 

RECORD or c0uMcM VOTE 0M INTRODUCTION 
_, . , 

, _ 
3- 0 

couMoMPERsoM AYE MAY NM 
| 
couMcMPEnsoM AYE MAY M.v 

| 

oouMcMeEMsoM 
` ‘ 

AYE MAY NM 
E»OM¤LANO XXII BANGRAN /4:3 » C?/V HI BRENNAN KKK 
.¤¤llntY 

./ _$| EAvARR¤ KHK 
LOPEZ XXII RLOMAPOOON· |EOLEMAN IH11 
./ Indicates Vote N.V-Not Voting (Abstain) 

A RECORD or couMcM VOTE T0 ctosE rustic HEARING 
Councilperson moved, seconded by Councilperson to close RH. 

COUNCILPERSON AYE MAY NM 
I 

COUNCILPERSON AYE MAY MM 
| 

COUNCILPERSON AYE MAY MM 
SOTTOLANO XXII BANGRAN XXII BRENNAN 111 
IDONNELLY XXII EOLOP XXII EANARRO 111 
LOPEZ XXII RICHARDSON X11!| LEMAN 111 J Indicates Vote N.V-Not Voting (Abstain) 

RECORD or couMcM voTE 0M AMiEM¤mEMTs, IF ANY 
Councilperson moved to amend* Ordinance, seconded by Councilperson & adopted 
c0uMciu>EMs0M AYE MAY NM 

| 

COUNCILPERSON AYE MAY MM ICOUNCILPERSON AYE MAY MM 
SOTTOLANO XXII GANRRAN KKKI BRENNAN 111 
DONNELLY XXII FULOP 111 LAVARR0 $$1 
LOPEZ XXII PLONAPOSON 113 COLENIAN 111 
./ Indicates VoteN.V-Not 

Voting (Abstain) 

RECORD or FINAL c0uMcM VOTE 
couMciu>EMs0M AYE MAY NM 

| 

couMciu¤EnsoM AYE MAY NM 
| 
COUNCILPERSON AYE MAY MM 

BMTBLANO KKKI GAUGHAN XIII BRENNAN 111 
DONNELLY 113 EOLOR X11! EANARRB 111 
LOPEZ 113 RNRARBSON |EOLENAN 111 / Indicates Vote N.V-Not Voting (Abstain) 

Adopted on first reading of the Council of Jersey City, N.J. on MAY 8 2013 

Adopted on second and final reading after hearing on 

This is to certify that the foregoing Ordinance was adopted by APPROVED: 
the Municipal Council at its meeting on 

Robert Byrne, City Clerk P€T,€l" l"l. BPEHHGYI , , Council President 

*Amendment(s): Date: 

APPROVED; 

A Jerramiah I Healy, Mayor 

Date 

Date to Mayor



City Clerk File No. Ord. 13-063
° 

Agenda No. 
I 

3‘B 
1st Reading 

Q XERSG Agenda No. 47 ’3= 2nd Reading & Final Passage O P 
edtwllm 

>-< Pl 

» ORDINANCE 9 |' f 

OF 
QPORATE Se 

]ERSEY CITY, N,]. 
COUNCIL AS A WHOLE 
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance: 

CITY ORDINANCE 13-063 

TITLE: AN ORDINANCE SUPPLEMENTING CHAPTER 332 (VEHICLES AND TRAFFIC) 
ARTICLE III (PARKING, STANDING AND STOPPING) AND ARTICLE IX 
(PARKING FOR THE DISABLED) OF THE JERSEY CITY CODE DESIGNATING A 
RESERVED PARKING SPACE AT 201 LIBERTY AVENUE; 121 MAGNOLIA 
AVENUE AND 41 WALLIS AVENUE 

THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES ORDAIN: 

1. Chapter 332 (Vehicles and Traffic) Article III (Parking, Standing and Stopping) and Article IX (Parking for 
the Disabled) of the Jersey City Code is hereby supplemented as follows: 

Section 332-29 Disabled Parking Manual 
Section 332-69 Restricted parking zones in front of or near residences of disabled drivers. 

PARKING FOR THE DISABLED 
Restricted parking spaces, (measuring approximately 22 feet in length) in front of residential 
building for use by persons who have been issued special vehicle identification cards by the 
Division of Motor Vehicles and handicapped parking permits issued by the Traffic Division.

L 

Vienna Tallarido 201 Liberty Avenue 
Sergio Quinones 121 Magnolia Avenue 
Michael Kavanaugh 41 Wallis Avenue 

2. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed. 
3. This ordinance shall be a part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and incorporated in the official 
copies of the Jersey City Code. 
4. This ordinance shall take effect at the time and in the manner as prescribed by law. 
5. The City Clerk and the Corporation Counsel may change any chapter numbers, article numbers and section 
numbers if codification of this ordinance reveals a conflict between those numbers and the existing code, in 
order to avoid confusion and possible accidental repealers of existing provisions. 

NOTE: The new material to be inserted is underscored; the material to be repealed is in [brackets]. 

. APPROVED = 

Municipal Engineer 

APPROVEIEAS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED: /‘/ / /MA}/j 
- 

, 

Director, ep . o 1C/I' s~ 1 

APPROVED: 
pfiofporaiion Counsel Business Administrator 

Certification Required El ‘ 

Not Required El



FACT SHEET 

This summary sheet is to be attached to the front of any ordinance, resolution, cooperation 
agreement or contract that is submitted for Council consideration. Incomplete or sketchy summary 
sheets will be returned with the resolution or ordinance. The Department, Division or Agency 
responsible for the overall implementation of the proposed project or program should provide a 
concise and accurate statement of facts. 

1.Full title of ordinance/resolution/cooperation agreement: 
An ordinance supplementing Chapter 332(Vehicles and Traffic) Article Ill(Parking, Standing and 
Stopping) and Article IX(Parking for the Disabled) of the Jersey City Code designating a reserved 
parking space at 201 Liberty Avenue; 121 Magnolia Avenue and 41 Wallis Avenue 

2. Name and title of person initiating the ordinance/resolution, etc.: 
Lee D. Klein, P.E., PTOE, Assistant City Engineer, Division of Engineering, Traffic and Transportation, 
Department of Public Works on the behalf of the Municipal Council Committee for Disabled Parking 

3. Concise description of program, project or plan proposed in the ordinance/resolution: 
Designate a reserved parking space for the disabled at various locations throughout the City, for those 

disabled individuals whose applications have been reviewed and approved by The Municipal Council 
Committee for Disabled Parking. 

4. Reasons (need) for the proposed program, project, etc.: . 

To provide a reserved parking space for a disabled individual who has documented that his or her 
disability is severe enough to limit his mobility or so severe that he or she cannot be left unattended while 
the designated driver brings the vehicle to him or her or parks the vehicle. 

5. Anticipated benefits to the community:
_ 

Allow those disabled individuals, whose application was approved by The municipal Council Committee 
for Disabled Parking, to have a reserved parking space designated at his or her residence, therefore, 
improving the quality of his or her life. 

6. Cost of proposed program, project, etc. (Indicate the dollar amount of City, state, and Federal 
Funds to be used, as well as match and in-kind contribution: 
Approximately $200.00 per si gn/u—post installation for an approximate total of $1000.00 
6 disabled parking signs @ $100.00 ea. $600.00 

4 u-posts @ $100.00 ea. $400.00 

7. Date proposed program, or project will commence: 
Pending adoption by the Jersey City Municipal Council 

8. Anticipated completion date: 
4

4 

Twenty days after adoption by the Jersey City Municipal Council
' 

. 9. Person responsible for coordinating proposed program, project, etc.: 
Patricia Logan, Supervising Traffic Investigator, Division of Engineering, Traffic and Transportation,

' 

Department of Public Works, 20l.547.4492 

10. Additional comments: 
_

h 

Based on the in ovided to me, I certify that all the facts presented herein are accurate, 
to the be w g . 

4*; -;,1 {xs 
Munic' al gineer_ 

P 

Date

j ri 
Sig atureo epaftmentyv ctor Date! /



O I I 

Ordinance of the City, of Jersey C1ty, N,]. 
oaoinxtnce no. 

_ 

$.6.- MAY 6 zma +5. 
TITLE. 

An ordinance supplementing Chapter 332 (Vehicles and 
Traffic) Article III (Parking, Standing and Stopping) and Article O 4:*| lg, 

IX (Parking for the Disabled) ofthe Jersey City Code OJQJOR|TE 
s?`»Y` 

designating a reserved parking space at 20] Liberty Avenue; 
l2l Magnolia Avenue and 41 Wallis Avenue. 

mscono or COUNCIL von; on inrnooucnon 
i' 

· 
' 

I |— I 3 —0 
COUNCILPERSON AYE niw nv 

| 

COUNCILPERSON AYE nAv nv |councili=·ai·tson AYE nAv nv 
SOTTOEANB ./ K1! LBANERRAN @@1 BRENNAN KKK 
DUNNELLY IU11! EOEOP lVA$1!lAvARR¤ IHHZ 
LOPEZ IH11! RLORAROSON |¤¤EENAN· IK11 
./ Indicates Vote N.\L-Notvoting (Abstain) 

nzcono or COUNCIL von; ro close PUBLIC nmninc 
Councilperson moved, seconded by Councilperson to close RH. 

COUNCILPERSON AYE niw n.v 
| 

councilpanson AYE nAv nv 
| 

councilpenson AYE nAv nv 
SOTTOLANO X11! GANBRAN X11! BRENNAN 111 
DONNELLY KKKIPOLOP |lAvZ ARR¤ 111 
LOPEZ X11! RLOPLRPOOON |OOLLMAN 
./ Indicates Vote NV-Not Voting (Abstain) 

necono or COUNCIL vcr; on Ansnonenrs, ir Ant EB 

Councilperson moved to amend* Ordinance, seconded by Councilperson 8. adopted 

COUNCILPERSON Ava niw n.v 
| 

COUNCILPERSON AYE nity n.v |counciu=sRson AYE niw n.v 

SOTTOLANO X11 GAOGRAN X11! BRENNAN 111 
BONNE LLY X11! EOEOP 112 lAvARR¤ 111 
LOPEZ X11! RLOHAROOON 1X1!| LEMAN 111 
./ Indicates VoteN.V—Not Voting (Abstain) 

nsconn or FINAL COUNCIL von; 
COUNCILPERSON AYE nAv n.v 

| 
councilpsnson AYE nity nv ICOUNCILPERSON AYE nAv nv 

SOTTOLANO X11! GAUGHAN X11! BRENNAN 111 
BONNE EEY X11! FULOP III! EAvARR¤ 111 
LOPEZ X11! RLORAROSON 111 BOEENAN ZKY 
./ Indicates Vote NM-Not Voting (Abstain) 

Adopted on first reading of the Council of Jersey City, N.J. on 8 

Adopted on second and final reading after hearing on 

This is to certify that the foregoing Ordinance was adopted by APPROVED: 
the Municipal Council at its meeting on 

Robert Byrne, City Clerk peter. M. Brennan, Council President 

*Amendment(s): Datei 

APPROVED: 

Jerramiah ̀E Healy, Mayor 

Date 

_ 
Date to Mayor
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ORDINANCE ‘·’ "‘ 

Oo GF 
QPORATE gig 

]ERSEY CITY, N,]. 
COUNCIL AS A WHOLE 
offered and moved adoption of the following ordinance: 

CITY ORDINANCE 13-064 

TITLEORDINAN CE APPROVIN G A 30 YEAR TAX EXEMPTION FOR AN URBAN RENEWAL SENIOR LOW INCOME AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROJECT TO BE CONSTRUCTED BY SAMUEL A. BERMAN SENIOR RESIDENCE URBAN RENEWAL, LLC, AN URBAN RENEWAL ENTITY, PURSUANT TO THE LONG TERM TAX EXEMPTION LAW N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 Q SEQ Q. 
THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES ORDAIN: 

WHEREAS, Samuel A. Berman Senior Residence Urban Renewal, LLC, is an urban renewal entity, formed and qualified to do business under the provisions ofthe Long Term Tax Exemption Law of 1992, as amended and supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 ggg. (Entity); and 

WHEREAS, the Entity is the contract purchaser of certain property owned by Congregation Temple Beth-El (TBE) known as Block 17702, Lot 26, on the City’s Official Tax map, more commonly known by the street address of 69 Bentley Avenue, and more specifically described by metes and bounds in the application 
(Property); and 

WHEREAS, the Entity intends to demolish the temple house, upon site plan approval; and 

WHEREAS, on or about April 10, 2013, the Entity applied for a 30 year long term tax exemption to construct a four (4) story building containing approximately thirty-seven (3 7) one-bedroom units which are dedicated as senior low income affordable housing as defined by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (1—1UD), ground floor common area, a courtyard, and community room and offices; and

n 

WHEREAS, because the Property is low income affordable housing it is eligible for tax exemption pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-4, although it is in neither a redevelopment area or an urban enterprise zone; and 

WHEREAS, it is anticipated that the Entity will receive site plan approval from the Zoning Board of Adjustment on or before May I6, 2013; and · 

WHEREAS, Samuel A. Berman Senior Residence Urban Renewal, LLC, has agreed to:
n 

1. pay the greater of (i) the Minimum Annual Service Charge or (ii) a fixed rate of 9% of Annual Gross Revenue for years 1 through 15, which sum is estimated to be $26,159; 12% of Annual Gross Revenue for years 16 through 30, and which shall be subject to statutory staged increases over the term of the tax exemption; and 

2. pay an annual sum equal to 2% of each prior year’s Annual Service Charge as an Administrative Fee or approximately $523; and
_ 

3. pay an annual sum equal to 5% ofthe annual service charge to Hudson County; or 

4. provide employment and other economic opportunities for City residents and businesses; and 

WHEREAS, the City hereby determines that the relative benefits ofthe project outweigh the cost ofthe tax ° 

exemption, for the following reasons: 

1 . the property is currently exempt and generates no revenue for the City; however, based onrthe current assessment, the real estate taxes would generate revenue whereas, the Annual Service Charge as estimated, will generate revenue of more than $26,159 to the City; 

Ozvisorg
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ORDINANCE APPROVING A 30 YEAR TAX EXEMPTION FOR AN URBAN RENEWAL SENIOR ,
‘ LOW INCOME AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROJECT TO BE CONSTRUCTED BY SAMUEL A. BERMAN SENIOR RESIDENCE URBAN RENEWAL, LLC, AN URBAN RENEWAL ENTITY, PURSUANT TO THE LONG TERM TAX EXEMPTION LAW N..I.S.A. 40A:20—l §I` _§. '

· 

2. it is expected that the Project will create approximately 73 jobs during construction and 2 new full-
l

` 

time permanent jobs; ·

.
, 

3. the Project will stabilize and contribute to the economic growth of businesses in the surrounding
4

i 

area; “
‘

‘ 

4. the Project will further the overall redevelopment objectives of various Redevelopment Plans;
` 

- 5. the project provides 37 units of low income affordable housing which advances an inherently- ’ 

beneficial public purpose notwithstanding that the City’s impact analysis, on file with the Office ofthe City 
Clerk, indicates that the service charge will not support the cost of providing municipal services to the 
Project; and

- 

WHEREAS, the City hereby determines that the tax exemption is important in obtaining development of
I 

the project and influencing the locationaldecisionsof probable occupants for the following reasonsr
l 

1. the relative stability and predictability ofthe Annual Service Charges will make the Project more · 

attractive to investors needed to finance the Project; 
·

‘ 

2. the relative stability and predictability of the Annual Service Charges will allow the owner to 
stabilize its operating budget, allowing a high level of maintenance to the building over the life ofthe Project, 

_ 

‘ ‘

_ which will attract tenants to the Project and insure the likelihood of the success of the Project; and
A 

WHEREAS, Samuel A. Berman Senior Residence Urban Renewal, LLC, has initially complied with Executive Order 2002-005 concerning "Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative Status" by filing a letter in
_ the ·Office ofthe City Clerk; and I 

WHEREAS, this Project does not need to comply with the City of J ersey City’s Ordinance 07-123 Requiring
A Apprenticeships and Project Labor Agreement; and

. 

WHEREAS,this Ordinance will sunset and the Tax Exemption approved thereby will terminate, unless the 
Entity receives approval of the low income housing tax credits from the NJHMFA no later than May 24, 2015; and

_
_ 

WHEREAS, on April 16, 2013, the Tax Exemption Committee recommended the approval of the tax I 

exemption to the Mayor or Municipal Council. - 

·- 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey City that:
_

_ 

A, The application of Samuel A. Berman Senior‘Residence Urban Renewal, LLC, an urban renewal
_ company, formed and qualified to do_business under the provisions ofthe Long Term Tax Exemption Law of 1992, as amended and supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20—l g gg. a copy of which is on file in the office ` 

of the City Clerk, for Block 17702, Lot 26, more commonly known by the street address of 69 Bentley Avenue, and more specifically described by metes and bounds in the application, is hereby approved.
_ 

B. The Mayor or Business Administrator is hereby authorized to execute a tax exemption Financial
` 

Agreement and a Project Employment and Contracting Agreement. The Financial Agreement shall include 
at a minimum the following terms and conditions: 

. · 

1. Term: the earlier of 33 years from the adoption ofthe within Ordinance or 30 years from the date · the project is Substantially Complete; ' 

2. Annual Service Charge: each year the greater of: 

(a) a fixed-rate of 9% of Annual Gross Revenue for years 1 through 15, estimated at $26,159; ‘ 

12% of Annual Gross Revenue for years 16 through 30, and which shall be subject to 
statutory increases during the term of the tax exemption;

j
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ORDINANCE APPROVING A 30 YEAR TAX EXEMPTION FOR AN URBAN RENEWAL SENIOR 
_ LOW INCOME AFFORDABLE HOUSING PROJECT T0 BE CONSTRUCTED BY SAMUEL A. BERMAN SENIOR RESIDENCE URBAN RENEWAL, LLC, AN URBAN RENEWAL ENTITY, PURSUANT TO THE LONG TERM TAX EXEMPTION LAW N.J.S.A. 40A:20-l Q SILQ. 

(b) 5% ofthe Annual Service Charge or $1,308, for remittance to the County by the City. 
3. Administrative Fee: 2% of the prior year’s Annual Service Charge, or $523; 
4. Project: A four (4) story building to contain approximately thirty-seven (37) one-bedroom units for senior citizen households of low income, earning at or below 60% of Area Median Income (AMI), ground floor common area, a courtyard, and community room and offices; 

5. An obligation to execute a Project Employment and Contracting Agreement to insure employment and other economic benefits to City residents and businesses. 

· 

6. This Ordinance will sunset and the Tax Exemption approved thereby will terminate, unless the Entity receives approval of the low income housing tax credits from the NJHMFA no later than May 24, 2015. 
C. The application is on file with the office of the City Clerk. The Financial Agreement and Project Employment and Contracting Agreement shall be in substantially the form on file in the Office of the City Clerk, subject to such modification as the Business Administrator or Corporation Counsel deems appropriate or necessary. 

. D. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed. 

E. This ordinance shall be part ofthe Jersey City Code as though codified and fully set forth therein. The City Clerk shall have this ordinance codified and incorporated in the official copies ofthe Jersey City Code. 

F. This ordinance shall take effect at the time and in the manner provided by law. 

_ G. The City Clerk and Corporation Counsel be and they are hereby authorized and directed to change any chapter numbers, article numbers and section numbers in the event that the codification of this ordinance reveals that there is a conflict between those numbers and the existing code, in order to avoid confusion and possible accidental repealers of existing provisions. 

NOTE: All material is new; therefore underlining has been omitted. 
For purposes of advertising only, new matter is indicated by bold face 
and repealed matter by italic. 

J.M/he
n 

4/30/13 

\PPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED: 

{ APPROVED: "’ 
%%?·Gorporati6n Counsel 

Busin ss Administrator 
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Rev. 4-30-13 

Long Term Tax Exemption 

(New Affordable Res Rental F A) 

Re: 69 Bentley Avenue 
- Approximately 9,499 Square Feet of land 

Block 17702, Lot 26 e 

PREAMBLE 

THIS FINANCIAL AGREEMENT, [Agreement] is made the __day of_, 2013, by 
and between SAMUEL A. BERMAN SENIOR RESIDENCE URBAN RENEWAL, LLC, an 
urban renewal entity formed and qualified to do business under the provisions ofthe Long Term Tax 
Exemption Law of 1992, as amended and supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 gt gt]., having its 
principal office at c/o The Alpert Group, LLC, Real Estate Development & Management, One Parker 
Plaza, Fort Lee, NJ 07024 [Entity], and the CITY OF JERSEY CITY, a Municipal Corporation 
ofthe State of New Jersey, having its principal office at 280 Grove Street, Jersey City, New Jersey 
07302 [City]. 

r

A 

_ RECITALS ‘ 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
WHEREAS, the Entity is the Owner pursuant to a Deed, of certain property designated as 

Block 17702, Lot 26, more commonly known by the street address of 69 Bentley Avenue, Jersey 
City, and more particularly described by the metes and bounds description set forth as Exhibit 1 to 
this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, this property is an all affordable housing project and is thus eligible for tax 
exemption pursuant to 40A:20—4 and 40A:12A-5(g), although it is in neither a 
redevelopment area or an urban enterprise zone; and 

WHEREAS, the Entity plans to construct a four (4) story building with approximately 
thirty-seven (37) affordable residential rental units, ground floor common area, a courtyard, and 
community room and offices; [Project]; and 

WHEREAS, it is anticipated that the Project will receive site plan approval from the 
Zoning Board of Adjustment on or before May 16, 2013; and

_



WHEREAS, on April 10, 2013, the Entity filed an Application with the City for a long term 
tax exemption for the Project; and 

WHEREAS, by the adoption of Ordinance on , 2013, the Municipal 

Council approved a long term tax exemption for the Project and authorized the execution of a 

Financial Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the City made the following findings:
. 

A. Relative Benefits of the Proj ect when compared to the costs: 

l. the current real estate tax generates revenue of only $5,467, whereas, the 
Annual Service charge as estimated, will generate revenue to the City of 
approximately $26,159;

V 

2. it is expected that the Project will create approximately 73 new construction 
jobs and 2 new permanent full time jobs; 

3. the proj ect should stabilize and contribute to the economic growth of existing 
local business and to the creation of new businesses, which cater to the newA 

occupants; 

4. the project provides 37 units of affordable housing which advances an 
inherently beneficial public purpose notwithstanding that the City’s impact 
analysis, on file with the Office of the City Clerk, indicates that the service 
charge will not support the cost of providing municipal services to the 
Project; and 

B. Assessment ofthe Importance ofthe Tax Exemption in obtaining development of the o 

proj ect and influencing the locational decisions of probable occupants: 

l. the relative stability and predictability of the annual service charges will 
make the Project more attractive to investors and lenders needed to finance 
the Project; and 

2. the relative stability and predictability of the service charges will allow the 
owner to stabilize its operating budget, allowing a high level of maintenance 
to the building over the life ofthe Project, which will attract occupants to the 
Project, insure the likelihood of stabilized rents to tenants and the success of 
the Proj ect; and 

A 

3. have a positive impact on the surrounding area. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, and for

2



other good and valuable consideration, it is mutually covenanted and agreed as follows: 

ARTICLE I - GENERAL PROVISIONS 
Section 1.1 Governing. Law 

This Agreement shall be governed by the provisions ofthe Long Term Tax Exemption Law, 

as amended and supplemented, 40A:20-l g gi., Executive Order of the Mayor, 02-003, 
Disclosure of Lobbyist Status, Ordinance 02-075, and Ordinance + , which authorized the

I 

execution of this Agreement. It being expressly understood and agreed that the City expressly relies
‘ 

upon the facts, data, and representations contained in the Application, attached hereto as Exhibit 3, 
in granting this tax exemption. 

Section 1.2 General Definitions 

Unless specifically provided otherwise or the context otherwise requires, when used in this 

Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meanings: 

i. Allowable Net Profit- The amount arrived at by applying the Allowable Profit Rate 

to Total Project Cost pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20—3(c). 

ii. Allowable Profit Rate - The greater of 12% or the percentage per annum arrived at 

by adding 1.25% to the annual interest percentage rate payable on the Entity’s initial permanent 

mortgage financing. If the initial permanent mortgage is insured or guaranteed by a governmental 
. agency, the mortgage insurance premium or similar charge, if payable on a per annum basis, shall 

be considered as interest for this purpose. If there is no permanent mortgage financing, or if the 

financing is internal or undertaken by a related party, the Allowable Profit Rate shall be the greater 

of 12% or the percentage per annum arrived at by adding 1.25% per annum to the interest rate per 
annum which the municipality determines to be the prevailing rate on mortgage financing on 
comparable improvements in Hudson County. The provisions of 40A:20-3(b) are 

incorporated herein by reference. 
l n 

iii. Annual Gross Revenue Any and all revenue derived from or generated by the Proj ect 
of whatever kind or amount, whether received as rent from any tenants or income or fees from third 

parties, including but not limited to fees or income paid or received for parking, or as user fees or 
for any other services. No deductions will be allowed for operating or maintenance costs, including, 
but not limited to gas, electric, water and sewer, other utilities, garbage removal and insurance 

. 3
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charges, whether paid for by the landlord, tenant or a third party. 

iv. Annual Service Charge — The amount the Entity has agreed to pay the City each year 
for municipal services supplied to the Project, which sum is in lieu of any taxes on the Improve- 
ments, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 4OA:20-l2. It shall include a payment for all annual excess profit. 

v. Auditor’s Report — A complete annual financial statement outlining the financial status 
of the Project, which shall also include a certification of Total Project Cost and clear computation 

ofthe annual Net Profit. The contents ofthe Auditor’s Report shall have been prepared in conformity 
with generally accepted accounting principles and shall contain at a minimum the following: a 

balance sheet, a statement of income, a statement of retained earnings or changes in stockholders’
" 

equity, a statement of` cash flows, descriptions of accounting policies, notes to financial statements 

and appropriate schedules and explanatory material results of operations, cash flows and any other 
items required by Law. The Auditor’s Report shall be certified as to its conformance with such 
principles by a certified public accountant who is licensed to practice that profession in the State of 
New Jersey. 

vi. Certificate of Occupancy — A document, whether temporary or permanent, issued by 
the City authorizing occupancy of a building, in whole or in part, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 52:27D-133. 

vii. Debt Service - The amount required to make annual payments of principal and 
interest or the equivalent thereof on any construction mortgage, permanent mortgage or other 
financing including returns on institutional equity financing and affordable related party debt for the 
Project for a period equal to the term of this Agreement. 

viii. — Shall be a breach of or the failure of the Entity to perform any obligation
l 

imposed upon the Entity by the terms of this Agreement, or under the Law, beyond any applicable 
grace or cure periods. 

ix. |y — The term Entity within this Agreement shall mean Samuel A. Berman Senior A 

Residential Urban Renewal, LLC, which Entity is formed and qualified pursuant to 4OA:20- 
5. It shall also include any subsequent purchasers or successors in interest ofthe Proj ect, provided 
they are formed and operate under the Law. 

_

I 

x. Improvements or Project — Any building, structure or fixture permanently affixed to 
the land and to be constructed and tax exempted under this Agreement.

.
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- xi. ln Rem Tax Foreclosure or Tax Foreclosure - A summary proceeding by which the 
City may enforce a lien for taxes due and owing by tax sale, under N.J.S.A. 54:5-1 to 54:5-129 gt 

gl. 

xii. Land Taxes — The amount of taxes assessed on the value of land, on which the proj ect 

is located and, if applicable, taxes on any pre—existing improvements. Land Taxes are not exempt;
V 

however, Land Taxes are applied as a credit against the Annual Service Charge.
9 

xiii. Land Tax Payments - Payments made on the quarterly due dates, including approved · 

grace periods if any, for Land Taxes as determined by the Tax Assessor and the Tax Collector. 

xiv. — Law shall refer to the Long Term Tax Exemption Law, as amended and
" 

supplemented, 4OA:20-1, Q gl.; Executive Order of the Mayor O2-003, relating to long 
term tax exemption, as it may be supplemented; Ordinance O2-075 requiring Disclosure of Lobbyist 

4
_ 

Status and Ordinance 
, which authorized the execution of this Agreement and all other 

relevant Federal, State or City statutes, ordinances, resolutions, rules and regulations. 

xv. Low and Moderate Senior Citizen Housing - Low and moderate income affordable 
housing shall mean housing affordable to and occupied by senior citizens of low and moderate 

income as defined by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). 

xvi. Minimum Amiual Service Charge - The Minimum Annual Service Charge shall be 

the g| of: (a) the amount ofthe total taxes levied against all real property in the area covered by 
the Project in the last full tax year in which the area was subject to taxation, which amount the 

parties agree is $5,467; or (b) the sum of $26,159 per year, which sum will be prorated only during 

the years in which Substantial Completion occurs and this Agreement terminates. 

Following Substantial Completion, the Minimum Annual Service Charge set forth in 

subsection (b) shall be paid in each year in which the Annual Service Charge, calculated pursuant 

to N.J.S.A. 4OA:20-12 or this Agreement, would be less than the Minimum Annual Service Charge. 

xvii. Net Profit - The Annual Gross Revenues of the Entity less all annual operating and 

non—operating expenses of the Entity, all determined in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles, but:
` 

(1) there shall be included in expenses: (a) all Annual Service charges paid pursuant to 

4OA:20-12; (b) all annual payments to the City of excess profits pursuant to

5



4OA:20- l 5 or N.J.S.A. 40A:20—l 6; (c) an annual amount sufficient to amortize (utilizing the straight 

line method—equal annual amounts) the Total Proj ect Cost and all capital costs determined in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, of any other entity whose revenue is 

included in the computation of excess profits over the term of this agreement; (d) all reasonable 

. annual operating expenses of the Entity and any other entity whose revenue is included in the 

computation of excess profits including the cost of all management fees, brokerage commissions, e 

insurance premiums, all taxes or service charges paid, legal, accounting, or other professional service 

fees, utilities, building maintenance costs, building and office supplies and payments into repair or 

maintenance reserve accounts; (e) all payments of rent including but not limited to ground rent by 

the Entity; (f) all debt service; and 

(2) there shall not be included in expenses either depreciation or obsolescence, interest on 

debt, except interest which is part of debt service, income taxes or salaries, bonuses or other 

compensation paid, directly or indirectly to directors, officers and stockholders of the entity, or! 

officers, partners or other persons holding a proprietary ownership interest in the entity. 

xviii. Pronouns — He or it shall mean the masculine, feminine or neuter gender, the singular, 

as well as the plural, as context requires. 

xix. Substantial Completion - The determination by the City that the Project, in whole or
` 

in part, is ready for the use intended, which ordinarily shall mean the first date on which the Project 

receives, or is eligible to receive, any Certificate of Occupancy whether temporary or permanent for 

any portion of the Proj ect. 

xx. Termination - Any act or omission which by operation ofthe terms of this Financial 

Agreement shall cause the Entity to relinquish its tax exemption.
H 

xxi. Total Project Cost - The total cost of constructing the Project through the date a 

Certificate(s) of Occupancy is issued for the entire Proj ect, which categories of cost are set forth in 

N.J.S.A. 4OA:20—3(h). There shall be included in Total Project Cost the actual costs incurred by the 

Entity and certified by an independent and qualified architect or engineer, which are associated with 

site remediation and cleanup of enviromnentally hazardous materials or contaminants in accordance 

with State or Federal law and any extraordinary costs incurred including the cost of demolishing 

structures, relocation or removal of public utilities, cost of relocating displaced residents or buildings

6



and the clearing of title. The Entity agrees that final Total Project Cost shall not be less than its 

estimated Total Project Cost. 

ARTICLE II - APPROVAL 

Section 2.1 Approval of Tax Exemption 

The City hereby grants its approval for a tax exemption for all the Improvements to be 

constructed and maintained in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the 

provisions of the Law which Improvements shall be constructed on certain property known on the 

Official Tax Assessor’s Map of the City as: Block 17702, Lot 26, more commonly known by the 
- street address 69 Bentley Avenue, Jersey City, and described by metes and bounds in Exhibit l 

attached hereto. .
— 

Section 2.2 Approval of Entity 

Approval is granted to the Entity whose Certificate of Formation is attached hereto as Exhibit 

4. Entity represents that its Certificate contains all the requisite provisions of the Law; has been 

reviewed and approved by the Commissioner ofthe Department of Community Affairs; and has been 

filed with, as appropriate, the Office of the State Treasurer or Office of the Hudson County Clerk, 

all in accordance with 4OA:20—5. 

Section 2.3 Improvements to be Constructed 

Entity represents that it will construct a four (4) story building with approximately thirty- 

seven (3 7) low and moderate income affordable residential rental units for senior citizens, ground 

floor common area, a courtyard, and community room and offices; all of which is specifically 

described in the Application attached hereto as Exhibit 3. 

Section 2.4 Construction Schedule 

The Entity agrees to diligently undertake to commence construction and complete the Proj ect 

in accordance with the Estimated Construction Schedule, attached hereto as Exhibit 5, and in 

compliance with any Redevelopment Agreement. - 

Section 2.5 Ownership, Management and Control 

The Entity represents that it is the owner ofthe property upon which the Proj ect is to be con- 

structed. Upon construction, the Entity represents that the Improvements will be used, managed and
_ 

controlled for the purposes set forth in this Agreement and any Redevelopment Agreement.

7



Section 2.6 Financial Plan

I 

The Entity represents that the Improvements shall be- financed in accordance with the 

Financial Plan attached hereto as Exhibit 6. The Plan sets forth a good faith estimate of Total 

Project Cost, the amortization rate on the Total Project Cost, the source of funds, the interest rates 

to be paid on construction financing, the source and amount of paid-in capital, andthe terms of any 

mortgage amortization. 

Section 2.7 Good Faith Estimate of Initial Sale Prices or Rents 

The Entity represents that its good faith projections ofthe initial rents and other revenue to 

the Project are set forth in Exhibit 7. 

ARTICLE III — DURATION OF AGREEMENT - 

Section 3.1 Term 

_ 

So long as there is compliance with the Law and this Agreement, it is understood and agreed 
bythe parties hereto that this Agreement shall remain in effect for the earlier of 33 years from the 

date ofthe adoption of Ordinance ___ on , 2013, which approved the tax exemption 

or 30 years from the original date of Substantial Completion ofthe Project or _20_. The 
_ 

tax exemption shall only be effective during the period of usefulness of the Proj ect and shall 

continue in force only while the Project is owned by a corporation or association formed and 

operating under the Law. 

ARTICLE IV - ANNUAL SERVICE CHARGE 
Section 4.1 Annual Service Charge ' 

.
» 

In consideration ofthe tax exemption, the Entity shall make the following annual payments 
to the City for services provided to the Proj ect: 

i. City Service Charge: an amount equal to the greater of: the Minimum Annual Service 
Charge or an Annual Service Charge equal to 9% of Annual Gross Revenue for years I through 5; 
12% of Annual Gross Revenue for years 16 through·30. The Annual Service Charge shall be billed 
initially based upon the Entity’s estimates of Annual Gross Revenue, attached hereto as Exhibit 6. 
Thereafter, the Annual Service Charge shall be adjusted in accordance with this Agreement. 

ii. County Service Charge: an amount equal to 5% of the Municipal Annual Service 
Charge shall be paid to the City and remitted by the City to the County.

.
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iii. A Minimum Annual Service Charge shall be due begirming on the effective date of 
this Agreement. The City and County Annual Service Charge shall be due on the first day of the 

month following the Substantial Completion of the Proj ect. In the event the Entity fails to timely 

pay the Minimum Annual Service Charge or the Annual Service Charge, the unpaid amount shall 

bear the highest rate of interest permitted in the case of unpaid taxes or tax liens on land until paid.
I 

Section 4.2 Staged Adjustments 

The Annual Service Charge shall be adjusted, in Stages over the term of the tax exemption 

in accordance with 40A:204l2(b) as follows:
I 

i. Stage One: From the lst day ofthe month following Substantial Completion until the 

last day of the 15th year, the Annual Service Charge shall be 9% of Annual Gross Revenue; and 

12% of Annual Gross Revenue for years 16 through 30; 

ii. Stage Two: Beginning on the 1* day of the 16th year following Substantial 

Completion until the last day of the 21 st year, an amount equal to the greater ofthe Amiual Service 

Charge or 20% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of the land and 

Improvements; 

iii. Stage Three: Beginning on the lst day of the 22nd year following the Substantial 

Completion until the last day ofthe 27th year, an amount equal to the greater ofthe Annual Service 

Charge or 40% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of the land and 

Improvements; 

iv. Stage Four: Beginning on the lst day of the 28th year following Substantial 

Completion until the last day ofthe 29th year, an amount equal to the greater of the Annual Service 

Charge or 60% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of the land and · 

Improvements.

l

c 

v. Final Stage: Beginning on the lst day of the 30th year following Substantial 

Completion through the date the tax exemption expires, an amount equal to the greater of the 

Annual Service Charge or 80% of the amount of thetaxes otherwise due on the assessed value of
F 

the land and Improvements. 

Section 4.3
I 

Land Tax 

The Entity is required to pay both the Annual Service Charge and the Land Tax Payments.

9



The Entity is obligated to make timely Land Tax Payments, including any tax on the pre-existing 

improvements, in order to be entitled to a Land Tax credit against the Annual Service Charge for the 

subsequent year. The Entity shall be entitled to credit for the amount, without interest, of the Land 

Tax Payments made in the last four preceding quarterly installments against the Annual Service I 

Charge. In any quarter that the Entity fails to make any Land Tax Payments when due and owing,
` 

such delinquency shall render the Entity ineligible for any Land Tax Payment credit against the
l 

Annual Service Charge. No credit will be applied against the Annual Service Charge for a partial 

payment of Land Taxes. In addition, the City shall have, among this remedy and other remedies, 

the right to proceed against the property pursuant to the In Rem Tax Foreclosure Act, 54:5- 

l, gt sql. and/or declare a Default and terminate this Agreement. 

Section 4.4 Quarterly Installments / Interest 

The Entity expressly agrees that the Annual Service Charge shall be made in quarterly 

installments on those dates when real estate tax payments are due; subject, nevertheless, to 

adjustment for over or underpayment within_ thirty (30) days after the close of each calendar year. 

In the event that the Entity fails to pay the Annual Service Charge or any other charge due under this 

agreement, the unpaid amount shall bear the highest rate of interest permitted in the case of unpaid 

taxes or tax liens on the land until paid in full. 

Section 4.5 Administrative Fee
I 

The Entity shall also pay an annual Administrative Fee to the City in addition to the Annual 

Service Charge and Land Tax levy. The Administrative Fee shall be calculated as two (2%) percent 

of each prior year’s Annual Service Charge. 
_ 
This fee shall be payable and due on or before 

· December 3 l st of each year, and collected in the same manner as the Annual Service Charge. 

Section 4.6 Material Conditions
i 

It is expressly agreed and understood that the timely payments of Land Taxes, Minimum 

» Annual Service Charges, Annual Service Charges, including adjustments thereto, Administrative 

Fees, Affordable Housing Contributions, and any interest thereon, are Material Conditions of this 

Agreement. 

ARTICLE V - PROJECT EMPLOYMENT AND CONTRACTING AGREEMENT 
Section 5.1 Project Employment and Contracting Agreement

10



In order to provide City residents and businesses with certain employment and other 

economic related opportunities, the Entity is subject to the terms and conditions of the Project 

Employment and Contracting Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit 8. 

ARTICLE VI - CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY
A 

Section 6.1 Certificate of occupancy 

It is understood and agreed that it shall be the obligation of the Entity to obtain all 

Certificates of Occupancy in a timely manner so as to complete construction in accordance with the
, 

proposed construction schedule attached hereto as Exhibit 5. The failure to secure the Certificates 

of Occupancy shall subject the Property to full taxation for the period between the date of Substantial
_ 

Completion and the date the Certificate of Occupancy is obtained. 

Section 6.2 Filing of Certificate of Occupancy 

It shall be the primary responsibility ofthe Entity to forthwith file with both the Tax Assessor 
and the Tax Collector a copy of each Certificate of Occupancy. 

Failure ofthe Entity to file such issued Certificate of Occupancy as required by the preceding 

paragraph, shall not militate. against any action or non-action, taken by the City, including, if 
appropriate retroactive billing with interest for any charges determined to be due, in the absence of 

such filing by the Entity.
V 

ARTICLE VII — ANNUAL REPORTS 
Section 7.1 Accounting System 

The Entity agrees to maintain a system of accounting and internal controls established and 
administered in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

Section 7.2 Periodic Reports 

A. Auditor’s Report: Within ninety (90) days after the close of each fiscal or calendar year,
I 

depending on the Entity’s accounting basis that the Agreement shall continue in effect, the Entity 
shall submit to the Mayor and Municipal Council and the NJ Division of Local Government Services 

r 

in the Department of Community Affairs, its Auditor’s Report for the preceding fiscal or calendar 
year. The Auditor’s Report shall include, but not be limited to gross revenue, and the terms and 
interest rate on any mortgage(s) associated with the purchase or construction ofthe Project and such 
details as may relate to the financial affairs of the Entity and to its operation and performance

ll



hereunder, pursuant to the Law and this Agreement. The Report shall clearly identify and calculate 

the Net Profit for the Entity during the previous year, the excess of which shall be paid to the City 

each year an excess profit is generated. · 

_ 

B. Total Project Cost Audit: Within ninety (90) days after Substantial Completion of the 

Project, the Entity shall submit to the Mayor, Municipal Council, the Tax Collector and the City 

Clerk, who shall advise those municipal officials required to be advised, an auditof Total Project 

Cost, including but not limited to an audit of actual construction costs as certified by the Project 

architect. 

C. Disclosure Statement: On the anniversary date of the execution of this Agreement, and 
each and every year thereafter while this agreement is in effect, the Entity shall submit to the 

Municipal Council, the Tax Collector and the City Clerk, who shall advise those municipal officials 

required to be advised, a Disclosure Statement listing the having an ownership interest in 

the Project, and the extent of the ownership interest of each and such additional infomation as the 

City may request from time to time. All disclosures shall include ownership interests of the 

individual persons owning any corporate interest in the Entity. 

Section 7.3 Inspection/Audit ` 

The Entity shall permit the inspection of its property, equipment, buildings and other 

facilities of the Project and, if deemed appropriate or necessary, any other related Entity by 

representatives duly authorized by the City or the NJ Division of Local Govermnent Services in the 

Department of Community Affairs. It shall also permit, upon request, examination and audit of its 

books, contracts, records, documents and papers. Such examination or audit shall be made during 

the reasonable hours of the business day, in the presence of an officer or agent designated by the
A 

Entity for any year during which the tax exemption financial agreement was in full force and effect. 

All costs incurred by the City to conduct a review ofthe Entity’s audits, including reasonable 

attomeys’ fees if appropriate, shall be billed to the Entity and paid to the City as part ofthe Entity’s 

Annual Service Charge. Delinquent payments shall accrue interest at the same rate as for a 

delinquent service charge. `

i 

ARTICLE VIII- LIMITATION OF PROFITS AND RESERVES
Q 

Section 8.1 Limitation of Profits and Reserves
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During the period of tax exemption as provided herein, the Entity shall be subject to a 

limitation of its profits pursuant to the provisions of| 40A:20—15. 
The Entity shall have the right to establish a reserve against vacancies, unpaid rentals, and 

reasonable contingencies in an amount equal to five (5%) percent ofthe Gross Revenue ofthe Entity
l 

for the last full fiscal year preceding the year and may retain such part of the Excess Net Profits as 
is necessary to eliminate a deficiency in that reserve, as provided in 40A:20-15. The reserve 
is to be non—cumu1ative, it being intended that no further credits thereto shall be permitted after the 
reserve shall have attained the allowable level of five (5%) percent of the preceding year’s Gross 
Revenue. Pursuant to 40A:20—14(b) there is expressly excluded from the calculation of 
Gross Revenue and Net Profit in the determination of Excess Profit, any gain realized bythe Entity 

on the sale of any condominium unit, whether or not taxable under federal or state law. · 

Section 8.2 Annual Payment of Excess Net Profit 

In the event the Net Profits of the Entity, in any year, exceeds the Allowable Net Profits for 
such year, then the Entity, within one hundred and twenty (120) days after the end of the year, shall 

pay such excess Net Profits to the City as an additional annual service charge; provided, however, 
that the Entity may maintain a reserve as determined pursuant to aforementioned paragraph 8.1 . The 
calculation of the Entity’s Excess Net Profits shall include those project costs directly attributable 
to site remediation and cleanup expenses and any other costs excluded in the definition of Total 
Project Cost in Section 1.2 (xx) of this Agreement even though those costs may have been deducted 
from the project costs for purposes of calculating the amiual service charge. 

Section 8.3 Payment of Reserve! Excess Net Profit Upon Termination, Expiration or Sale 

The date of termination, expiration or sale shall be considered to be the close of the fiscal 
year ofthe Entity. Within ninety (90) days after such date, the Entity shall pay to the City the amount 
of the reserve, if any, maintained by it pursuant to this section and the balance of the Excess Net 
Profit, if any.

_ 

ARTICLE IX - ASSIGNMENT AND/OR ASSUMPTION 
Section 9.1 Approval of Sale

A 

Any sale or transfer of the Proj ect, shall be void unless approved in advance by Ordinance 
of the Municipal Council. It is understood and agreed that the City, on written application by the
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Entity, will not unreasonably withhold its consent to a sale of the Project and the transfer of this 

Agreement provided 1) the new Entity does not own any other Project subject to long term tax 
exemption at the time of transfer; 2) the new Entity is formed and eligible to operate under the Law; 
3) the Entity is not then in default of this Agreement or the Law; 4) the Entity's obligations under

T 

this Agreement are fully assumed by the new Entity; 5) the Entity is comprised of principals 
. possessing substantially the same or better business reputation, financial qualifications and credit 

worthiness of the Entity; and 6) the Entity pays in full the maximum transfer fee, 2% ofthe Annual 
Service Charge, as permitted by 40A:20-10(d). 

Nothing herein shall prohibit any transfer of the ownership interest in the Entity itself 
provided that the transfer, if greater than 10%, is disclosed to the City in the annual. disclosure 
statement or in correspondence sent to the City in advance of the filing of the annual disclosure 
statement.

· 

Section 9.2 Transfer Application Fee 

Where the consent or approval of the City is sought for approval of a change in ownership 
or sale or transfer ofthe Project, the Entity shall be required to pay to the City a new tax exemption 
application fee for the legal and administrative services of the City, as it relates to the review, 
preparation and/or submission of documents to the Municipal Council for appropriate action on the 
requested assigmnent. The fee shall be non-refundable. 

ARTICLE X - COMPLIANCE 
Section 10.1 Operation 

During the term of this Agreement, the Project shall be maintained and operated in 
accordance with the provisions of the Law. Operation of Project under this Agreement shall not 

U 

only be terminable as provided by 40A:20-1, g gg., as amended and supplemented, but 
also by a Default under this Agreement. The Entity's failure to comply with the Law shall constitute 
a Default under this Agreement and the City shall, among its other remedies, have the right to 
terminate the tax exemption. 

Sectioni 10.2 Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative
S 

During the term of this Agreement, the Entity must comply with Executive Order 2002-005, 
and Ordinance 02-075, requiring Written Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative Status. The Entity’s 
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failure to comply with the Executive Order or the Ordinance shall constitute a Default under this 

Agreement and the City shall, among its other remedies, have the right to terminate the tax
A 

exemption. * 

_ ARTICLE XI - DEFAULT
_ 

Section 11.1 Default
A 

Default shall be failure ofthe Entity to conform with the terms of this Agreement or failure 

of the Entity to perform any obligation imposed by the Law, beyond any applicable notice, cure or 

grace period. 

Section 11.2 Cure Upon Default · 

Should the Entity be in Default, the City shall send written notice to the Entity ofthe Default 

[Default Notice]. The Default Notice shall set forth with particularity the basis of the alleged 

Default. The Entity shall have sixty (60) days, from receipt of the Default Notice, to cure any
A 

Default which shall be the sole and exclusive remedy available to the Entity. However, if, in the 

reasonable opinion ofthe City, the Default carmot be cured within sixty (60) days using reasonable 

diligence, the City will extend the time to cure.
. 

Subsequent to such sixty (60) days, or any approved extension, the City shall have the right 

to terminate this Agreement in accordance with Section 12.1. 

Should the Entity be in default due to a failure to pay any charges defined as Material 

Conditions in Section 4.7, the Entity shall not be subject to the default procedural remedies as 

provided herein but shall allow the City to proceed immediately to terminate the Agreement as 

provided in Article XII herein. 

Section 11.3 Remedies Upon Default 

The City shall, among its other remedies, have the right to proceed against the property 
‘ 

pursuant to the ln Rem Tax Foreclosure Act, 54:5-l 
, gt gg. In order to secur_e the full and

A 

timely payment ofthe Annual Service Charge, the City on its own behalf or on behalf of the Trustee, 
reserves the right to prosecute an In Rem Tax Foreclosure action against the Project Area inA 

accordance with (Applicable Law, as more fully set forth in this Financial Agreement. 

_ 

In addition, the City may declare a Default and terminate this Agreement. Any default arising 
out ofthe Entity's failure to pay Land Taxes, the Minimum Annual Service Charge, Administrative 

‘ l 
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Fees, Affordable Housing Contribution, or the Annual Service Charges shall not be subject to the 

default procedural remedies as provided in Article XI herein, but shall allow the City to proceed 

immediately to terminate the Agreementas provided in Article XII. All of the remedies provided 

in this Agreement to the City, and all rights and remedies granted to it by law and equity shall be 

cumulative and concurrent. No termination of any provision of this Agreement shall deprive the City 

of any of its remedies. or actions against the Entity because of its failure to pay Land Taxes, the 

Minimum Annual Service Charge, Annual Service Charge, Affordable Housing Contribution or 

Administrative Fees. This right shall apply to arrearages that are due and owing at the time or which, 

under the terms hereof would in the future become due as if there had been no termination. Ftuther, 

the bringing of any action for Land Taxes, the Minimum Annual Service Charge, the Annual Service 

Charge, Affordable Housing Contribution, Administrative Fees, or for breach of covenant or the 

resort to any other remedy herein provided for the recovery of Land Taxes shall not be construed as 

a waiver of the rights to terminate the tax exemption or proceed with a tax sale or Tax Foreclosure 

action or any other specified remedy. 

In the event of a Default on the part of the Entity ̀to pay any charges set forth in Article IV, 

the City among its other remedies, reserves the right to proceed against the Entity's land and 

property, in the manner provided by the In Rem Foreclosure Act, and any act supplementary or 
V amendatory thereof. Whenever the word taxes appear, or is applied, directly or impliedly to mean 

taxes or municipal liens on land, such statutory provisions shall be read, as far as is pertinent to this 

Agreement, as if the charges were taxes or municipal liens on land. 

ARTICLE XII- TERMINATION 

Section 12.1 Termination Upon Default of the Entity 

In the event the Entity fails to cure or remedy the Default within the time period provided in 

Section ll.2, the City may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice to the 

Entity [Notice of Termination]. 

Section 12.2 Voluntary Termination by the Entity 

The Entity may notify the City that it will relinquish its status as a tax exempt Proj ect, after 

the expiration of one year from the Substantial Completion of the Project , as of the January ls‘ of 

the year next ensuing. The Notice of Voluntary Termination must be received by the City no later
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than October lst ofthe tax year preceding the calendar year in which the termination is to occur. As
l 

of the date so set, the tax exemption, the Annual Service Charges and the profit and dividend 

restrictions shall terminate. However, under no circumstances will the Entity be entitled to any 

refund, in whole or in part, of any funds paid to the City to obtain the tax exemption, including but 

not limited to the Affordable Housing Contribution. In addition, the due date for all Affordable 

Housing Contribution and any other fees that the Entity agreed to pay under this Agreement, shall 

be accelerated so that all fees to be paid shall be due on January 1s‘ as a condition precedent of the 

voluntary termination. 

Section 12.3 Final Accounting 

Within ninety (90) days after the date of termination, whether by affirmative action of the 

Entity or by virtue ofthe provisions ofthe Law or pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, the Entity 

shall provide a final accounting and pay to the City the reserve, if any, pursuant to the provisions of 

_ 

40A:20— 1 3 and 15 as well as any remaining excess Net Profits. For purposes of rendering 

a final accounting the termination ofthe Agreement shall be deemed to be the end ofthe fiscal year 

for the Entity. 

. Section 12.4- Conventional Taxes
i 

Upon Termination or expiration of this Agreement, the tax exemption for the Project shall 

expire and the land and the Improvements thereon shall thereafter be assessed and conventionally 

taxed according to the general law applicable to other nonexempt taxable property in the City. 

ARTICLE XIII - DISPUTE RESOLUTION ` 

Section 13.1 Arbitration 

. In the event of a breach of the within Agreement by either of the parties hereto or a dispute 

arising between the parties in reference to the terms and provisions as set forth herein, either party 

may apply to the Superior Court of New Jersey by an appropriate proceeding, to settle and resolve 
the dispute in such fashion as will tend to accomplish the purposes of the Law. In the event the 

Superior Court shall not entertain jurisdiction, then the parties shall submit the dispute to the 

American Arbitration Association in New Jersey to be determined in accordance with its rules and 
regulations in such a fashion to accomplish the purpose ofthe Long Term Tax Exemption Law. The 

cost for the arbitration shall be borne by the Entity. The parties agree that the Entity may not file an
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action in Superior Court or with the Arbitration Association unless the Entity has first paid in iiill
_ 

all charges defined in Section 4.8 as Material Conditions.
. 

Section 13.2 Appeal of Assessment 

In calculating the amount of "staged" tax adjustments that is, taxes otherwise due, pursuant 
to Section 4.2 and N.J.S.A. 4OA:20—l2, either party may file an appeal of the conventional 
assessment to determine the value of land and improvements. 

ARTICLE XIV - WAIVER 
Section 14.1 Waiver

t 

Nothing contained in this Financial Agreement or otherwise shall constitute a waiver or
l 

relinquishment by the City of any rights and remedies, including, without limitation, the right to 
terminate the Agreement and tax exemption for violation of any ofthe conditions provided herein. 
Nothing herein shall be deemed to limit the City’s right to audit or recover any amount which the 
City has under law, in equity, or under any provision of this Agreement. 

V ARTICLE XV — INDEMNIFICATION 
Section 15.1 Defined ’

I 

It is understood and agreed that in the event the City shall be named as party defendant in any 
A 

· 

action by a third party alleging any breach, default or a violation of any of the provisions of this 
Agreement and/or the provisions of 40A:20-l the Entity shall indemnify and hold 
the City harmless against any and all liability, loss, cost, expense (including reasonable attorneys’ 
fees and costs, through trial and all stages of any appeal, including the cost of enforcing this 
indemnity) arising out of Agreement. In addition, the Entity expressly waives all statutory or 
common law defenses or legal principles which would defeat the purposes of this indenmification. 
The Entity also agrees to defend the suit at its own expense. However, the City maintains the right 
to intervene as a party thereto, to which intervention the Entity consents; the expense thereof to be 
home by the City. 

ARTICLE XVI- NOTICE 
Section 16.1 Certified Mail

_ 

Any notice required hereunder to be sent by either party to the other shall be sent by certified 
or registered mail, return receipt requested.
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Section 16.2 Sent by City 

When sent by the City to the Entity the notice shall be addressed to: 

Samuel A. Berman Senior Residence Urban Renewal, LLC 
c/o The Alpert Group, LLC 
One Parker Plaza

j 

Fort Lee, New Jersey 07024 
Attn: Joseph Alpert, Managing Member

‘ 

unless prior to giving of notice the Entity shall have notified the City in writing otherwise. 

In addition, provided the City is sent a formal written notice in accordance with this
p 

Agreement, of the name and address of Entity’s Mortgagee, the City agrees to provide such 

Mortgagee with a copy of any notice required to be sent to the Entity. 

Section 16.3 Sent by Entity 

When sent by the Entity to the City, it shall be addressed to: 

l City of Jersey City, Office of the City Clerk 

City Hall 

280 Grove Street 

Jersey City, New Jersey 07302, 

with copies sent to the Corporation Counsel, the Business Administrator, and the Tax Collector 

unless prior to the giving of notice, the City shall have notified the Entity otherwise. The notice to
H 

the City shall identify the Project to which it relates, (i.e., the Urban Renewal Entity and the 

Property’s Block and Lot number). » 

ARTICLE XVII-SEVERABILITY 

Section 17.1 Severability 

If any term, covenant or condition of this Agreement or the Application, except a Material 

Condition, shall be judicially declared to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this 

Agreement or the application of such term, covenant or condition to persons or circumstances other 

than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby, and each 

term, covenant or condition of this Agreement shall be valid and be enforced to the fullest extent 

permitted by law.
_ 

If a Material Condition shall be judicially declared to be invalid or unenforceable and 

provided the Entity is not in Default of this Agreement, the parties shall cooperate with each other
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to take the actions reasonably required to restore the Agreement in a manner contemplated by the parties and the Law. This shall include, but not be limited to the authorization and re—execution of this Agreement in a fonn reasonably drafted to effectuate the original intent of the parties and the Law. However, the City shall not be required to restore the Agreement if it would modify a Material Condition, the amount ofthe periodic adjustments or any other term of this Agreement which would result in any economic reduction or loss to the City. ‘

A 

ARTICLE XVIII — MISCELLANEOUS 
Section 18.1 Construction U

»

_ 

This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws ofthe State of New Jersey, and without regard to or aid of any presumption or other rule requiring construction against the party drawing or causing this Agreement to be drawn since counsel for both the Entity and the City have combined in their review and approval of same. 
Section 18.2 Conflicts 

The parties agree that in the event of a conflict between the Application and the language contained in the Agreement, the Agreement shall govern and prevail. In the event of conflict between the Agreement and the Law, the Law- shall govern and prevail.
A Section 18.3 Oral Representations 

There have been no oral representations made by either of the parties hereto which are not contained in this Agreement. This Agreement, the Ordinance authorizing the Agreement, and the _ Application constitute the entire Agreement between the parties and there shall be no modifications thereto other than by a written instrument approved and executed by both parties and delivered to each party.

V Section 18.4 Entire Document A
i

t

p 

This Agreement and all conditions in the Ordinance ofthe Municipal Council approving this Agreement are incorporated in this Agreement and made a part hereof 
Section 18.5 Good Faith t 

In their dealings with each other, utmost good faith is required from the Entity and the City. Section 18.6 Pending Litigation
i 

The Entity fully and freely holds the City harmless and assumes any risk that may effect theI 
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present or future validity of the within financial agreement, arising from any other litigation. 

ARTICLE XIX - EXHIBITS 

Section 19 Exhibits 

The following Exhibits are attached hereto and incorporated herein as if set forth at length 
herein:

_ 

1. Metes and Bounds description of the Project; 
2. Ordinance of the City authorizing the execution of this Agreement; 
3. The Application with Exhibits; 
4. Certificate of the Entity; 

5. Estimated Construction Schedule; . 

. 6. The Financial Plan for the undertaking of the Proj ect; 
7. Good Faith Estimate of Initial Rents; . 

8. Project Employment and Contracting Agreement; 
9. Architect's Certification of Actual Construction Costs. 

‘ 

10. Entity’s Deed 

_ IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused these presents to be executed the day 
and year first above written. 

WITNESS: SAMUEL A. BERMAN SENIOR RESIDENCE 
URBAN RENEWAL, LLC ` 

ATTEST: CITY OF JERSEY CITY 

ROBERT BYRNE JOHN KELLY 
CITY CLERK BUSINESS ADMINISTRATOR 
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5 

PROJECT EMPLOYMENT & CONTRACTING AGREEMENT 

i 

This Project Employment & Contracting Agreement is made on the _ day of , 2013, 

between the CITY OF JERSEY CITY [City] and SAMUEL A. 
_ 

BERMAN SENIOR 
RESIDENCE URBAN RENEWAL, LLC, having its principal office at c/o The Alpert Group, 
LLC, Real Estate Development & Management, One Parker Plaza, Fort Lee, NJ 07024. Recipient 
agrees as follows:

" 

I. Definitions:
i 

The following words and terms, when used in this agreement, shall have the following 
meanings unless the context clearly indicates otherwise. 

1. "City" means the Business Administrator of the City of Jersey City, or his designee, 

, including any person or entity which enters into a contract with the City to implement, in 
whole or in part, this agreement. 

2. "Construction Contract" means any agreement for the erection, repair, alteration or 
demolition of any building, structure, bridge, roadway, or other improvement on a Project 
Site.

V 

3. "Contractor" means any party performing or offering to perform a prime contract on behalf 
of the Recipient. 

4. "DEO" means the Division of Economic Opportunity under the Department of 
Administration, located at 280 Grove Street, Jersey City, NJ 07302, Telephone #(201) 547- 
561 1. DEO is in charge of Project Employment & Contracting coordination and monitoring 
on projects receiving abatements.

_ 

5. "Economic Incentive" means a tax abatement or exemption for a property or project which
‘ 

requires approval ofthe Municipal Council and which reduces the annual amount of taxes 
otherwise due, by $25,000 or more in the aggregate; 

6. "Employment" means any job or position during the construction and operational phase of 
the proj ect. It includes positions created as a result of internal promotions, terminations, or 
expansions within the Recipient's work force which are to be filled by new employees. 
However, positions filled through promotion from within the Recipient's existing work force 
are not covered positions under this agreement. 

7. "Local Business" means a bona fide business located in Jersey City. 

8. Mayor J erramiah T. Healy's Business Cooperative Program means the group within DEO 
under the Department of Administration responsible for collecting local and minority 

_ 
business contracts and capability information. This group operates the Supplier Alert service 
which is to be used by the Recipient to meet their good faith business contracting and .

1



‘ 

construction subcontracting goals. 

9. "Minority" means a person who is African, Hispanic, Asian, or American Indian defined as 
_ 

follows: V 

a) "African—American" means a person having origins in any ofthe black racial groups 
of Africa. 

b) "Hispanic" means a person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South 
American or other Latino culture or origin, regardless of race, excluding, however, 
persons of European origin. 

c) "Asian" means a person having origins in any ofthe original people ofthe F ar East, 
Southeast Asia, and subcontinent India, Hawaii or the Pacific Islands. 

d) "American Indian" means a person having origins in any of the original people of 
North America who maintains cultural identification through tribal affiliation or 
community recognition. 

IO. "Minority or Woman Owned Local Business" means a bona fide business located in Jersey 
City which is fifty-one (51%) percent or more owned and controlled by either a Minority or 
woman. 

ll. "Non-Traditional Jobs" means jobs which are held by less than twenty (20%) percent` 

women, as reported by the New Jersey Department of Labor, Division of Labor Market, and 
Demographic Research for Jersey City, which report shall be on file with the City Clerk. 

12. "Permanent Jobs" mean newly created long term salaried positions, whether permanent, 
temporary, part time or seasonal. 

‘ 

13. "Project or Project Site" means the specific work location or locations specified in the 
contract. 

14. The "Proj ect Employment & Contracting Coordinator" is a member ofthe DEO staff under 
, 

the Department of Administration who is in charge of coordinating Proj ect Employment& 
Contracting projects. Contractors and developers engaged in projects covered by Project 
Employment & Contracting Agreements will direct inquiries to the Project Employment& 
Contracting Coordinator.

_ 

l5. The "Project Employment & Contracting Monitor" or "Monitor” is a member of the DEO 
staff under the Department of Administration directly under the command of the Project 
Employment & Contracting Coordinator, who is in charge of monitoring the site, collecting 

_ 

the reports and documentation, and other day-to-day Project Employment & Contracting 
housekeeping as stipulated by this agreement.

_ 

16. The "Project Employment & Contracting Officer" or “Officer" is an employee of the
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I 

Recipient who is designated by the Recipient to make sure the Recipient is in compliance 
with the Recipient’s Project Employment & Contracting agreement. 

1 7. "Recipient" means any individual, partnership, association, organization, corporation or other 
entity, whether public or private, or for profit or non—profit, or agent thereof] which receives 
an Economic Incentive and shall include any Contractor, Subcontractor or agent of the 
Recipient. 

18. "The Registry" or "Jersey City Employment Registry" means a list maintained by the City 
or its designee of Jersey City residents seeking employment and Local Businesses, including 
Minority or Woman Owned Local Businesses, seeking contracts. 

19. "Subcontract" means a binding legal relationship involving performance of a contract that 
is part of a prime contract. 

20. "Subcontractor" means a third party that is engaged by the prime Contractor to perform under 
a subcontract all or part of the work included in an original contract. 

21. "Substantial Completion" means the determination by the City that the Project, in whole or 
in part, is ready for the use intended, which ordinarily shall mean the date on which the 
Project receives, or is eligible to receive any Certificate of Occupancy for any portion ofthe 
Proj ect. 

II. Purpose:
1 

The City wishes to assure continuing employment opportunities for City residents, 
particularly residents who are Minorities, and business opportunities for Local Businesses, especially Minority and Women Owned Local Businesses, with employers located in or relocating to the City who are the Recipients of Economic Incentives. The City has determined to accomplish that goal by requiring the Recipient of an Economic Incentive to act in Good Faith, as defined herein, and discharge its obligations under this Agreement. To the extent mandated by State and Federal law and so long as the Entity discharges its Good Faith obligations under this agreement, the City acknowledges that the Recipient and its contractors are free to hire whomever they choose. 

III. Good Faith Goals: 

In the event the Recipient is able to demonstrate that its work force already meets the goals set forth below or is able to meet such goals during the term of this agreement, the Recipient will not be required to comply with the interviewing or reporting obligations set forth in Section VI 1., A—L (Construction Jobs) and Section VI, 2., A-J (Permanent Jobs). All goals for Construction Jobs shall be calculated as a percentage of the total number of work hours in each trade from the beginning of the project to its completion. 

1. Employment: The Recipient shall make a Good Faith effort to achieve the goal of a work force representing fifty-one (51%) percent City residents, fifty—one (51%) percent of whom are residents who are Minorities and, in Non—Traditional Jobs, six point nine (6.9%) percent of whom
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are residents who are women, it being understood that one employee may satisfy more than one 
category.

· 

2. Business Contracting: The Recipient shall make a Good Faith effort to achieve the goal 
of awarding twenty (20%) percent ofthe dollar amount of its contracts to Local Businesses, fifty—one 
(51%) percent of which shall be Minority or Women Owned Local Businesses. If fifty-one (51%) 
percent of Minority or Women Owned Local Businesses cannot be obtained, that percentage of 
contracts must still be applied to local vendors.

_ 

IV. Recipient Designee: 

The Recipient shall designate a principal officer of its firm to be responsible for 
administering the agreement detailed herein and to report to and confer with the City in order to 
discharge its Good Faith obligations as defined in this agreement. This officer should be designated 
as the Project Employment & Contracting Officer. 

The Recipient should send a letter of introduction regarding the "Project Employment & 
Contracting Compliance Officer" to the Proj ect Employment & Contracting Coordinator prior to any 
preconstruction meetings. An example of this letter can be found in Appendix A. This principle 
officer should also be present for all preconstruction meetings. 

The Recipient should send a letter regarding the "Proj ect Employment & Contracting Compliance 
Officer" to the employees of the Recipient’s company. An example of this letter can be found in 
Appendix AZ . 

V. Term:
U 

T 

This agreement shall be in effect for a period co—terminus with the effective period ofthe tax 
. exemption [the Economic Incentive]. Thus, it will commence on the date the City Council adopted 

Ordinance approving the tax exemption and terminate the earlier of 33 years from the date 
ofthe adoption of that Ordinance or 30 years from the date of Substantial Completion ofthe Project. 

VI. Good Faith Defined: 

1. Construction Jobs: Good Faith shall mean compliance with all ofthe following conditions: 

A. Initial Manning Report: 

- 

l 

i) Prior to the commencement of their work on the Project, each Contractor 
/Subcontractor shall prepare an Initial Manning Report. 

ii) The Initial Marming Report should contain an estimate of the total hours in each 
K 
construction trade or craft and the number of hours to be worked by City residents, 
including a list of the number of minority residents and women residents that will 
work in each trade or craft, including the work hours to be performed by such 
employees of any and all Contractors and Subcontractors. Attached hereto as
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A 

Appendix B is the Recipient’s Initial Manning Report. 

iii) The Initial Manning Report shall be tiled with the Project Employment and 
Contracting Monitor, who must accept said Report prior to the Recipient entering 
into any construction contract. An example of this acceptance letter is given in 
Appendix C. 

B. Developer’s Contracting Obligations · 

i) Once the developer submits the proj ect’ s initial manning report, he/ she must forward 
a letter with requests for quotation or bid to Mayor J erramiah T. Healy's Business 

_

· 

Cooperative Program for local and minority vendors for any construction or building 
· operating goods, services and sub—contracting opportunities. An example of this 

letter is given in Appendix D. - 

ii) The developer shall make a good faith effort to contact those businesses and 

individuals who submit bids. This effort must be documented by letter, which will 
be sent to Mayor Jerramiah T. Healy's Business Cooperative Program at DEO under 
the Department of Administration. An example of this letter can be found in 
Appendix D2.

‘ 

C.
n 

Contractor's/Subcontractor’s Compliance Statement
` 

_ 

Prior to commencement of their work on the Project, each Contractor or Subcontractor must 
agree in writing to comply with this agreement and the employment goals elaborated herein. An 
example of this Compliance Statement can be found in Appendix E. 

D. Union Statement of Using Its Best Efforts 
i I 

i) Prior to commencement of their work on the Project, the contractor/subcontractor 
must submit a statement expressing its adherence to the Project Employment & 
Contracting Agreement to each union with which he/she has a collective bargaining 
agreement covering workers to be employed on the proj ect. 

ii) The Compliance Statement shall include a union statement for the particular union
_ 

to sign, which claims the union will use its best efforts to comply with the 
employment goals articulated in the Proj ect Employment & Contracting agreement. 
This compliance statement is detailed in Appendix F. A copy of the signed 
compliance statement must be sent to the Project Employment & Contracting 
Monitor in DEO under the Department of Administration before work starts in order 
for a developer to be in compliance. 

iii) The Recipient will require the Contractor or Subcontractor to promptly notify the 
City of any refusal or failure of a union to sign the statement. If a particular union

I 

refuses to sign a statement, the Recipient will document its efforts to obtain such
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statement and the reasons given by the union for not signing such statement, and 
submit such documentation to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor in 
DEO under the Department of Administration. ` 

E. Sub-Contractors 

The developer shall require that each prime contractor be responsible for the compliance of 
his/her subcontractors with the aforementioned Project Employment & Contracting requirements 
during the performance ofthe contract. Whenever the contractor sub-contracts a portion ofthe work` 

on the project, the contractor shall bind the
{ 

subcontractor to the obligations contained in these 
supplemental conditions to the full extent as if he/she were the contractor.

1 

F. Union Apprentices 

The contractor is responsible for assuring that resident and minority apprentices account for 
at least fifty (50%) percent of the total hours worked by union apprentices on the job in each trade 
listed in which apprentices are employed, according to the apprentice-to—journey—worker ratio 
contained in the collective bargaining agreement between the various unions, and shall hold each of 
his/her subcontractors to this requirement. The Recipient will require the contractor or subcontractor 
to promptly notify the City of any refusal of a union to utilize resident and minority apprentices. 

G. Monthly Manning Report 

i) The Recipient will cause the Contractor to complete and submit Monthly Project 
Manning Reports to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor in DEO under 
the Department of Administration by the seventh day of the month following the

g month during which the work is performed, for the duration of the contract. 

ii) The report will accurately reflect the total hours in each construction trade or craft 
and the number of hours worked by City residents, including a list of the number of 
minority resident and women resident workers in each trade or craft, and will list 
separately the work hours performed by such employees of the Contractor and each 
of its Subcontractors during the previous month. The Monthly Manning Report shall 
be in the form attached hereto as Appendix G. 

iii) The Recipient is responsible for maintaining or causing the Contractor to maintain 
records supporting the reported work hours of its Contractors or Subcontractors. 

H. Monthly Certified Payroll Report 

i) The Recipient will cause the Contractor to furnish the Proj ect Employment & 
Contracting Monitor with copies of its weekly Certified Payroll reports. The reports 
will specify the residence, gender and ethnic/racial origin of each worker, work hours 
and rate of pay and benefits provided. The Certified Payroll report shall be in the 
form attached hereto as Appendix H.



ii) Payroll reports must be submitted on a monthly basis with the Monthly Manning 
Report or the Recipient is no longer in compliance. 

I. Equal Employment Opportunity Reports ` 

Prior to commencement of work on the Proj ect, the Recipient will request copies ofthe most 
recent Local Union Report (EEO-3) and Apprenticeship Information Report (EEO-2) which are 
required to be filed with the US Commission of Equal Employment Opportunity Commission by the 
collective bargaining unit. These reports will be forwarded to the Proj ect Employment & Contracting 
Monitor within one month of the signing of the Project Employment & Contracting Agreement. 

J. Other Reports
. 

In addition to the above reports, the Recipient shall furnish such reports or other documents 
to the City as the City may request from time to time in order to carry out the purposes of this

g agreement. 

K. Records Access 

The Recipient will insure that the City will have reasonable access to all records and files` 

reasonably necessary to confirm the accuracy of the information provided in the reports. 

L. Work Site Access For Monitor 

i) The City will physically monitor the work sites subject to this agreement to verify the 
. accuracy of the monthly reports. Each work site will be physically monitored 

approximately once every two weeks, and more frequently if it is deemed reasonably 
necessary by the City. The City's findings shall be recorded in a "Site Visit Report." 
An example of a bi-weekly site visit report can be found in Appendix I. 

ii) The Recipient shall require the Contractor and Sub—contractor to cooperate with the 
City's site monitoring activities and inform the City as to the dates they are working 

— 

_ 

at the Project site. This includes specifically instructing the on-site construction 
manager about the monitoring process, and informing him/her that the monitor will 
contact him/her to set up an initial meeting. In the case of projects with multiple 
locations, the Recipient shall inform the City of the dates they are working at each 
site l0cation(s) where they are working, in order to facilitate the monitoring. 

2. Permanent Jobs: Good Faith shall mean compliance with all ofthe following conditions: 

A. Pre—hiring Job Awareness: At least eight (8) months prior to the hiring of a Recipient’s 
permanent workforce, the Proj ect Employment & Contracting officer for the Recipient will sit down 
with the head of the Registry to discuss how the Recipient plans to hire its permanent workforce. 
The following issues should be covered in this meeting:
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i) whether subcontractors will be used in the hiring process. 

ii) the specific types of jobs that need to be filled. 

iii) the qualifications needed for these particular jobs. 

iv) possible training programs offered by the permanent employer. 

v) the Recipient’s goals and how it plans to 1neet these goals. 
vi) any other issues which need to be addressed by the Registry. 

1. Subcontractor Notification —- If the Recipient decides to subcontract any portion or all of its 

permanent workforce, then the Recipient must receive a signed acknowledgment from the 

subcontracting party that it will abide by the Proj ect Employment & Contracting Agreement before 
said subcontractor begins staffing permanent employees. The Recipient must forward a copy ofthe 

signed acknowledgment to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor. An example of this 
signed acknowledgment can be found in Appendix E. 

2. Subcontractor Pre-Hiring Job Awareness Meeting -— Each subcontractor hired to staff 

permanent job positions must appoint a Proj ect Employment & Contracting Officer to meet with the 
head of the Registry to discuss the same issues presented above in VI 2.A(I—vi). 

3. Subcontractors of Subcontractors--Subcontractors of subcontractors are subject to the same 
requirements for the initial subcontractors above in Section VI 2.A.

i 

B. Documentation of Hiring Plan--Once the Pre-Hiring Job Awareness Meeting has taken place, 

the Recipient must put together a document with goals and totals for future permanent employment
C 

needs. This plan should summarize all that was discussed in the Pre-Hiring Awareness Meeting, list 
estimates for manpower needs, set residential and minority employment goals commensurate with 
the Proj ect Employment & Contracting Agreement, and show how the Recipient plans to meet these 
goals. An example of this plan is found in Appendix J. 

C. Pre-Hiring Notification: At least ten (10) working days prior to advertising for any 
employees, the Recipient or the Recipient’s subcontractor shall provide the Registry with a written 

notice, which shall state the job title, job description and minimum qualifications, rate of pay, hours 
of work and the hiring date for each position to be filled, in qualitative and objective terms which 
will enable the Registry to refer qualified applicants to the Recipient.

V 

D. Advertisement: At the request of the City, or because the City does not have qualified 
applicants to refer to the Recipient, the Recipient will place an advertisement for the jobs in a 
newspaper which is regularly published in Jersey City. The Recipient must furnish the Project 
Employment & Contracting Coordinator in DEO under the Department of Administration with a 

copy of this advertisement. 

E. Pre-Hiring Interview: The Recipient shall interview any qualified applicants referred to it 
from the Registry, to be maintained by the City or its designee. In the event advertisement is

` 

required, the Recipient agrees to interview any qualified persons responding to the advertisement. 

F. Semi—Annual Employment Reports: The Recipient will submit written semi—annual 
employment reports to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor in the form to be provided

8



by the City. The report will describe the job, whether the job is held by a City resident, minority 
resident or woman resident. The report will explain in writing the reasons why any qualified 
applicant referred by the Registry (or in the event advertisement is required, any qualified person 
responding to the advertisement) was not hired. An example of this report is found in Appendix K. 

G. Record Access: The Recipient shall provide the City with reasonable access to all files and 
records including payroll and personnel information reasonably necessary to confirm the accuracy 
of the information set forth in the semi—annual reports. 

H. Work Place Access: The Recipient shall provide the City with reasonable access to the site 
- to physically monitor the work site to verify the accuracy of the information set forth in the semi- 

annual reports. · 

I. Other Reports, Documents: In addition to the above reports, the Recipient shall furnish such 
reports or other documents that the City may request from time to time in order to implement the 
purposes of this agreement. 

J. Incorporation of Agreement: The Recipient shall incorporate the provisions of this 
Agreement in all contracts, agreements and purchase orders for labor with any service, maintenance,

_ 

security or management agent or Contractor engaged by the Recipient whose personnel will be 
assigned to the Recipient project. 

3. Business Contracting 

Good Faith shall mean compliance with all of the following conditions: 

l) Solicitation of Businesses: A

I 

a) One month before accepting bids for goods and services, the Recipient must forward 
‘ 

a letter with requests for quotation or bid to Mayor J erramiah T. Healy’s Business 
Cooperative Program for local and local minority vendors for any construction or 
building operating goods, services and subcontracting opportunities. An example of 
this letter can be found in Appendix D. 

b) After submission of bids, the Recipient will document whether the bid was accepted 
or rejected, and state the reason why. An example of this documentation can be found 
in Appendix D2. 

i) Semi-Armual Purchasing Reports: The Recipient will submit written semi— 
annual purchasing reports which will include a list of all contracts awarded 

. over a six month period and the dollar amounts of these contracts. The 
reports will specify the number and dollar amount of contracts awarded to 
Local Businesses and Minority or Women Owned Local Businesses. An 
example of these reports can be found in Appendix L. 

ii) No Utilization of Local and Local Minority Vendors As Conduits For
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Vendors That Are Not Local Or Minority Owned: 

A 

The Recipient pledges not to use local and local minority vendors solely as conduits for vendors that 
are not local and minority owned. Any discovery by DEO under the Department of Administration 
of a Recipient, either knowingly or unknowingly, using the masthead of a local or minority owned 
business as a way to get credit for local or minority employment when it should not, will 
immediately subject the Recipient to the penalties listed in Section VIII (d) below. 

4. Summation of Documentation Needed For Compliance with Agreement 

1. Letter Designating Proj ect Employment & Contracting Officer (Appendix A) 
2. Letter designating Project employment & Contracting Officer to Recipient’s Employees 

(App) AZ 
3. Example of Initial Mamqing Report (Appendix B) 
4. Letter Of Acceptance of Initial Manning Report (Appendix C) 
5. Letter From Developer Forwarding Requests for Quotation or Bid for Minority and 

Residential Vendors from Mayor J erramiah T. Healy's Business Cooperative Program 
(Appendix D) 

6. Documentation of Bid Submission (Appendix D2) 
7. Letter Expressing Project Employment & Contracting Obligations to Contractors! 

Subcontractors (Appendix E) 
8. Union Statement of Best Efforts (Appendix F) 
9. Example of Monthly Manning Report (Appendix G) 

‘ 

10. Example of Monthly Certified Payroll Report (Appendix H) 
ll. Example of Bi—Weekly Site Visit Report (Appendix I) · 

12. Example of Documentation of Hiring Plan (Appendix J) 
13. Example of Semi-Armual Employment Report (Appendix K) 
14. Example of Semi-Annual Purchasing Report (Appendix L) 

VII. Notices of Violation: 

1. Advisory Notice: The City will issue a written Advisory Notice to the Recipient if there is 
non—compliance with a Good Faith requirement as defined in this agreement. The Advisory 
Notice shall explain in sufficient detail the basis ofthe alleged violation. The Recipient shall 
have four (4) working days to correct the violation. An example of an Advisory Notice can 
be found in Appendix M. 

2. Violation Notice: If the alleged violation set forth in the Advisory Notice has not been 
corrected to the satisfaction ofthe City within four (4) working days, the City shall then issue 
a Violation Notice to the Recipient. The Violation Notice shall explain in sufficient detail 
the basis ofthe alleged, continuing violation. The Recipient will have three (3) working days 
to correct the violation. An example of a Violation Notice can be found in Appendix N. 

3. Correcting the Violation: Either or both the Advisory Notice or the Violation Notice may 
be considered corrected if the Recipient satisfies the requirements of this agreement and so 
advises the City in writing, subject to confirmation by the City. 
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4. Extension of Time to Correction: Either the Advisory Notice or the Violation Notice may 
be held in abeyance and the time for correction extended if the Recipient enters into 
satisfactory written agreement with the City for corrective action which is designed to 
achieve compliance. If Recipient fails to abide by the terms of such agreement the violation 
will be considered not corrected. 

5. Meetings Concerning Violations: The City may provide an opportunity for a meeting with 
the Recipient, his Contractors or Subcontractors in an effort to achieve compliance; or may 
respond to Recipient's request for a meeting after the Recipient has made timely submission 
of a written explanation pursuant to the above. The meeting shall be requested no later than 
two days after the alleged violator has submitted the written explanation. 

6. Interviews Relating to Violations: The City may conduct interviews and may request 
additional information from appropriate parties as is considered necessary to determine 

_ 
whether the alleged violation has occurred. 

7. Determination of Violation: The City shall issue a determination of whether the Recipient 
is in violation of this agreement as soon as possible but not later than thirty days after the 
delivery of the Violation Notice to the Recipient. If the City determines that the Recipient 
is in violation, the City shall be entitled to the liquidated damages provided below. 

VIII. Liquidated Damages/Interest: 

While reserving any other remedies the City may have at law or equity for a material breach 
of the above terms and conditions, the parties agree that damages for violations of this agreement 
by the Recipient cannot be calculated within any reasonable degree of mathematical certainty. 
Therefore, the parties agree that upon the occurrence of a material breach of any ofthe above terms 
and conditions and after notice and expiration of any period to correct the violation, the City will be 
entitled to liquidated damages from the Recipient in the following amounts: 

a) failure to file Initial Manning Reports (Construction Jobs) or Pre-Hiring Notification 
(Permanent Jobs) or Pre—Contracting Notification (Business Contracting): an amount 
equal to a Five (5%) percent increase in the estimated annual payment in lieu of 
taxes; 

b) failure to conduct Pre-hiring Interviews or submit Compliance Statement 
(Construction Jobs) or Solicit Bids (Business Contracting): an amount equal to Three 
(3%) percent increase in the estimated annual payment in lieu of taxes; 

c) failure to allow record or work place access or submit any other required reports (all 
categories): an amount equal to Two (2%) percent increase in the estimated armual 

_ . payment in lieu of taxes.
· 

d) the use of the local or local minority business’ masthead for labor or work supplied 
by a non local or local minority vendor: An amount equal to Five (5%) percent

ll



increase in the estimated annual payment in lieu of taxes. Interest shall be charged . 

on any damages at the legal rate of interest as calculated by the Tax Collector. 

e) 
° 

the late payment of any liquidated sum shall accrue interest at the rate of 8%. 

r IX. Commercial Tenants at the Project Site:
_ 

l. The Recipient shall send all tenants of commercial space within the Project Site a 
e 

letter and a Tenant Employment Services Guide in the form attached as Appendix 
O.

. 

2. The Recipient shall solicit information from tenants of commercial space about the 
composition of the work force of each tenant. The information solicited will be 
submitted to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor, which shall provide 
the Recipient with a questionnaire in the form attached as Appendix P. 

3. The Recipient will send the results of its solicitation to the Project Employment& 
Contracting Monitor no later than October 31 of each year. 

4. The Recipient shall send all tenants of commercial space within the Proj ect Site a 
Supplier Alert Service Registration Package in the form attached as Appendix Q. 

X. Notices 

Any notice required hereunder to be sent by either party to the other, shall be sent by certified 
mail, return receipt requested, addressed as follows: ·

’ 

1. When sent by the City to the Recipient it shall be addressed to: 

Samuel A. Berman Senior Residence Urban Renewal, LLC 
c/o The Alpert Group, LLC 
One Parker Plaza

`

_ 

I Fort Lee, New Jersey 07024 .

x Attn: Joseph Alpert, Managing Member 

2. When sent by the Recipient to the City, it shall be addressed to: 

Project Employment & Contracting Monitor 
Department of Administration 
Division of Economic Opportunity 
280 Grove Street- ls‘ Floor

. 

Jersey City, New Jersey 07302 

with separate copies to the Mayor and the Business Administrator; unless prior to giving of such 
notice, the City or the Recipient shall have notified the other in writing. 
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XI. Adoption, Approval, Modification: 

This agreement shall take effect on the date that the Economic Incentive is approved by the 
Municipal Council. 

XII. Controlling Regulations and Laws: ‘ 

To the extent required by State and Federal Law and so long as the Entity discharges its Good 
Faith obligations under this agreement, the City agrees and acknowledges that the Recipient and its 
contractors are free to hire whomever they choose. If this agreement conflicts with any collective 
bargaining agreement, the City agrees to defer to such agreements so long as the Recipient provides 
the City with a copy of the offending provision in the collective bargaining agreement. - 

ATTEST: CITY OF JERSEY CITY
p 

Robert Byrne John Kelly

n 

City Clerk Business Administrator · 

WIT NESS: SAMUEL A. BERMAN SENIOR RESIDENCE 
URBAN RENEWAL, LLC 

Secretary President
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JERSEY CITY, N.], 
COUNCIL AS A WHOLE

q 

offered and moved adoption_of the following ordinance: 

CITY ORDINANCE 13-065 

. TITLEORDINAN CE APPROVING A 30 YEAR TAX EXEMPTION FOR AN URBAN RENEWAL MIXED- 
INCOME, MIXED—USE HOUSING PROJECT TO BE CONSTRUCTED BY AHM HOUSING 
ASSOCIATES IV, LLC, AN URBAN RENEWAL ENTITY, PURSUANT TO THE LONG TERM 
TAX EXEMTTION LAW N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 Q SEQ Q.

g 

THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JERSEY CITY DOES ORDAIN: 

WHEREAS, AHM Housing Associates IV, LLC, is an urban renewal entity, formed and qualified to do 
business under the provisions ofthe Long Term Tax Exemption Law of 1992, as amended and supplemented, 
N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 gg;. (Entity); and 

WHEREAS, the Entity is the ground lessee of certain property owned by the Jersey City Housing Authority 
(JCHA) known as Block 14601, Lots 22, 23, 26 and 36, on the City’s Official Tax map, more commonly 
known by the street address of 320 Duncan Avenue, and more specifically described by metes and bounds 
in the application (Property); and 

. WHEREAS, on or about April 3, 2013, the Entity applied for a 30 year long term tax exemption to to 
construct a mixed-income, mixed-finance consisting of four (4) buildings with approximately seventy (70) 
residential rental units, of which sixty-four (64) units will be occupied by and affordable to tenants of low 
or moderate income whose incomes are at or below 60% of the area median income, and the remaining six 
(6) units will be market rate residential units; and 

WHEREAS, because the Property is low and moderate income affordable housing it is eligible for tax 
exemption pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-4, although it is in neither a redevelopment area or an urban 
enterprise zone; and 

WHEREAS, on May 16, 2013, the Entity received site plan approval to to construct a mixed-income, mixed- 
finance consisting of four (4) buildings with approximately seventy (70) residential rental units, of which 
sixty-four (64) units will be leased exclusively to tenants whose incomes are at or below 60% ofthe area 
median income, and the remaining six (6) units will be market rate residential units pursuant to the New 
Jersey Council on Affordable Housing; and 

WHEREAS, AHM Housing Associates IV, LLC, has agreed to: . 

l. pay the greater of (i) the Minimum Annual Service Charge or (ii) 9% of Annual Gross Revenue for 
years 1 through 15, and 12% of Annual Gross Revenue for years 16 through 30, for the 60% ofthe area 
median income units; and 10% of Annual Gross Revenue for years 1 through 15, and 18% for years 16 
through 30 for the market rate residential units, which sum is estimated to be approximately $44,476, and

I 

which shall be subject to statutory staged increases over the term of the tax exemption; and 

2. pay an annual sum equal to 2% of each prior year’s Annual Service Charge as an Administrative Fee 
or approximately $890; and · 

3. pay an annual sum equal to 5% ofthe annual service charge to Hudson County; or 

4. provide employment and other economic opportunities for City residents and businesses; and 

WHEREAS, the City hereby determines that the relative benefits ofthe project outweigh the cost ofthe tax 
exemption, for the following reasons: 
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Continuation of City Ordinance 13:065 
, page 2

A 

. ORDINANCE APPROVING A 30 YEAR TAX EXEMPTION FOR AN URBAN RENEWAL MIXED-
n 

INCOME, MIXED—USE HOUSING PROJECT TO BE CONSTRUCTED BY AHM HOUSING
J ASSOCIATES IV, LLC, AN URBAN RENEWAL ENTITY, PURSUANT TO THE LONG TERM TAX

_ EXEMPTION LAW N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 IEE). 

1. the property is currently exempt and generates no revenue for the City; however, based on the current
"

_
_ assessment, the real estate taxes would generate revenue whereas, the Annual Service Charge as estimated, 

will generate revenue of more than $44,476 to the City;
` 

· - 

2. it is expected that the_Project will create approximately 70jobs during construction and 2 new full- 
7 

time permanent jobs; 
l

'
` 

3. the Project will stabilize and contribute to the economic growth of businesses in the surrounding
_ 

area; .
·

_ 

4. the Project will further the overall redevelopment objectives of various Redevelopment Plans; 

5. the project provides 64 units of low or moderate income affordable housing which advances an · 

inherently beneficial public purpose notwithstanding that the City’s impact analysis, on file with the Office
_ 

ofthe City Clerk, indicates that the service charge will not support the cost of providing municipal services 
to the Project; and

' 

_ 
-

I
` 

WHEREAS, the City hereby determines that the tax exemption is important in obtaining development of ‘ 

the project and influencing the locational decisions of probable occupants for the following reasons: -

i 

1. the relative stability and predictability of the Annual Service Charges will make the Project more 
attractive to investors needed to finance the Project; 

_ _ 
_ 

‘ `

_ 

2. the relative stability and predictability of the Annual Service Charges will allow the owner to ‘ 

stabilize its operating budget, allowing a hi gh level of maintenance to the building over the life ofthe Project, 
which will attract tenants to the Project and insure the likelihood ofthe success ofthe Project; and 

I
_ 

WHEREAS, AHM Housing Associates IV, LLC, has initially complied with Executive Order 2002g005 
concerning "Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative Status" by filing a letter in the Office ofthe City Clerk;

A and
. 

WHEREAS,this Project does not need to comply with the City of J ersey City’s Ordinance 07-123 Requiring 
_ 

Apprenticeships and Project Labor Agreement; and
_ 

WHEREAS, this Ordinance will sunset and the Tax Exemption approved thereby willterminate, unless the 
Entity receives approval of the low income housing tax credits from the NJHMFA no later than May 16,

A 

2015; and · 
·· 

WHEREAS, on April 16, 2013, the Tax Exemption Committee recommended the approval of the tax
4

_ 

exemption to the Mayor or Municipal Council.
_ 

Now, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Municipal Council of the City of Jersey City that: 
l 

V

L 

A. The application of AHM Housing Associates IV, LLC, an urban renewal company, formed and 
qualified to do business under the provisions ofthe Long Term Tax Exemption Law·of 1992, as amended

_ 

and supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 gt gi. a copy of which is on file in the office ofthe City Clerk, for 
_ 

Block 14601, Lots 22, 23, 26 and 36, more commonly known by the street address of 320 Duncan Avenue,
" 

and more specifically described by metes and bounds in the application, is hereby approved.
S 

B. The Mayor or Business Administrator is hereby authorized to execute a tax exemption Financial 
Agreement and a Project Employment and Contracting Agreement. The Financial Agreement shall include 

‘ 

at a minimum the following terms and conditions: 
l

‘ 

1. Term: the earlier of 35 years from the adoption of the within Ordinance or 30 years from the date 
the project is Substantially Complete; _ 

- 

_

·

l 

2. Annual Service Charge: each year the greater oft
_



Continuation of City Ordinance -13‘065 
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. ORDINANCE APPROVING A 30 YEAR TAX EXEMPTION FOR AN URBAN RENEWAL MIXED- l 

INCOME, MlXED—USE HOUSING PROJECT TO BE CONSTRUCTED BY AHM HOUSING 
ASSOCIATES IV, LLC, AN URBAN RENEWAL ENTITY, PURSUANT TO THE LONG TERM TAX 
EXEMPTION LAW N.J.S.A. 40A:20—1 Q §. · 

(a) 9% of Annual Gross Revenue for years 1 through 15, and 12% of Annual Gross Revenue 
for years 16 through 30, for the 60% ofthe area median income units; and 10% of Annual` 

Gross Revenue for years 1 through 15, and 18% for years 16 through 30 for the market rate 
residential units, which sum is estimated to be approximately $44,476, and which shall be 
subject to statutory staged increases over the term of the tax exemption; 

(b) 5% of the Annual Service Charge or $2,224, for remittance to the County by the City. 

3. Administrative Fee: 2% of the prior year’s Annual Service Charge, or $890; 
‘ 

4. Project: A mixed-income, mixed-finance consisting offour (4) buildings with approximately seventy 
(70) residential rental units, of which sixty-four (64) units will be leased exclusively to tenants whose 
incomes are at or below 60% of Area Median Income (AMI), and constitute affordable housing pursuant to _ 

the New Jersey Council on Affordable Housing, and the remaining six (6) units will be market rate 
residential units; 

5. An obligation to execute a Project Employment and Contracting Agreement to insure employment 
_ and other economic benefits to City residents and businesses. 

6. This Ordinance will sunset and the Tax Exemption approved thereby will terminate, unless the Entity 
receives approval of the low income housing tax credits from the NJ HMFA no later than May 16, 2015. 

C. The application is on file with the office of the City Clerk. The Financial Agreement and Project 
Employment and Contracting Agreement shall be in substantially the form on file in the Office of the City 
Clerk, subjectto such modification as the Business Administrator or Corporation Counsel deems appropriate 
or necessary.

V 

D. All ordinances and parts of ordinances inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed. 

E. This ordinance shall be part of the Jersey City Code as though codified and fully set forth therein. 
The City Clerk shall have this ordinance codified and incorporated in the official copies ofthe Jersey City 
Code. 

F. This ordinance shall take effect at the time and in the manner provided by law. 

G. The City Clerk and Corporation Counsel be and they are hereby authorized and directed to change 
any chapter numbers, article numbers and section numbers in the event that the codification of this ordinance 
reveals that there is a conflict between those numbers and the existing code, in order to avoid confusion and 
possible accidental repealers of existing provisions. 

NOTE: All material is new; therefore underlining has been omitted. 
For purposes of advertising only, new matter is indicated by bold face 
and repealed matter by italic. 

JA!/he 

5/01/13 

APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM APPROVED: 

APPROVED: I i` 
/·\Corporation Counsel 

Business Administrator 

Certification Required El 

Not Required El
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Long Term Tax Exemption 

et gl. 
(New Market Rate Res Rental FA) 

i 

Re: 320 Duncan Avenue 

Approximately 2.01 Acres 

Block 14601, Lots 22, 23,26 and 36 

PREAMBLE 

THIS FINANCIAL AGREEMENT, [Agreement] is made the _day of;__, 2013, by 
and between AHM HOUSING ASSOCIATES IV, L.L.C., an urban renewal entity formed and 
qualified to do business under the provisions of the Long Term Tax Exemption Law of 1992, as ‘ 

amended and supplemented, N.J.S.A. 40A:20-1 et gl., having its principal office at c/o Pennrose 

Properties, LLC, One Brewery Park, 1301 N. 3 1s‘ Street, Philadelphia, PA 19121-4495 [Entity], and 

the CITY OF JERSEY CITY, a Municipal Corporation of the State of New Jersey, having its 

principal office at 280 Grove Street, Jersey City, New Jersey 07302 [City].
3 

RECITALS 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
WHEREAS, the real property on which the Project is to be located is owned by the Jersey 

City Housing Authority [JCHA] and is described as Block 14601, Lots 22, 23, 26 and 36, more 

commonly known by the street address of 320 Duncan Avenue , Jersey City, and more particularly 

described by the metes and bounds description set forth as Exhibit 1 to this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Entity has executed a long—term ground lease for the Property with the 
J CHA for a period coterminous with this Agreement, and has contracted to construct certain 
improvements on the Property; and - 

WHEREAS, the Entity plans to construct a mixed-income, mixed—finance consisting of four 

(4) buildings with approximately seventy (70) residential rental units, of which sixty—four (64) units
I 

will be leased exclusively to tenants whose incomes are at or below 60% ofthe area median income,
A 

and the remaining six (6) units will be market rate residential units; [Project]; and
I 

WHEREAS, it is anticipated that the Project will receive site plan approval from the 

Planning Board on or before May 16, 2013; and

1



· WHEREAS, on or about April 3, 2013, the Entity filed an Application with the City for a i 

long term tax exemption for the Project; and 

WHEREAS, by the adoption of Ordinance on 
, 2013, the Municipal 

Council approved a long term tax exemption for the Project and authorized the execution of a 
Financial Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the City made the following findings: 
A. 

A 
Relative Benefits of the Project when compared to the costs:I

` 

1. the current real estate tax generates revenue of only approximately $0, whereas, the Annual Service charge as estimated, will generate revenue to the City of approximately $44,476; 

2. it is expected that the Project will create approximately 70 new construction jobs and 2 new permanent full time jobs;
` 

3. the project should stabilize and contribute to the economic growth of. 

existing local business and to the creation of new business, which cater to the new residents;
· 

4.- the project provides 68 units of affordable housing which advances an
I 

inherently beneficial public purpose notwithstanding that the City’s impact analysis, on file with the Office ofthe City Clerk, indicates that the service charge will not support the cost of providing municipal services to the Project; and
A 

B. Assessment ofthe Importance ofthe Tax Exemption in obtaining development of the 
project and influencing the locational decisions of probable occupants: 

1. the relative stability and predictability of the annual service charges will make the Project more attractive to investors and lenders needed to finance the Proj ect; and
A 

2. the relative stability and predictability of the service charges will allow the

` 

owner to stabilize its operating budget, allowing a high level of` maintenance 
A 

to the building over the life ofthe Project, which will attract occupants to the Project, insure the likelihood of stabilized rents to tenants and the success of the Project; and 

3. have a positive impact on the surrounding area. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, and for

2



other good and valuable consideration, it is mutually covenanted and agreed as follows: 

ARTICLE I - GENERAL PROVISIONS 
Section 1.1 Governing Law 

This Agreement shall be governed by the provisions ofthe Long Tenn Tax Exemption Law,
I 

as amended and supplemented, 40A:20-1 Q; gil., Executive Order of the Mayor, 02-003, 

Disclosure of Lobbyist Status, Ordinance 02-075, and Ordinance ____ , which authorized the 
execution of this Agreement. It being expressly understood and agreed that the City expressly relies 

upon the facts, data, and representations contained in the Application, attached hereto as Exhibit 3,
` 

in granting this tax exemption. · 

Section 1.2 General Definitions 

Unless specifically provided otherwise or the context otherwise requires, when used in this 

Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meanings:
_ 

I. Allowable Net Profit- The amount arrived at by applying the Allowable Profit Rate 

to Total Project Cost pursuant to N.] .S.A. 40A:20-3(c). 

ii. Allowable Profit Rate - The greater of 12% or the percentage per annum arrived at 

by adding 1.25% to the annual interest percentage rate payable on the Entity’s initial permanent 

mortgage financing. If the initial permanent mortgage is insured or guaranteed by a govemrnental 

agency, the mortgage insurance premium or similar charge, if payable on a per annum basis, shall 

be considered as interest for this purpose. If there is no permanent mortgage financing, or if the 

financing is internal or undertaken by a related party, the Allowable Profit Rate shall be the greater 

of 12% or the percentage per amrum arrived at by adding 1.25% per annum to the interest rate per
n 

amium which the municipality determines to be the prevailing rate on mortgage financing on 

comparable improvements in Hudson County. The provisions of 40A:20-3 (b) are 

incorporated herein by reference. 

iii. Annual Gross Revenue Any and all revenue derived from or generated by the Proj ect 

of whatever kind or amount, whether received as rent from any tenants or income or fees from third 

parties, including but not limited to fees or income paid or received for parking, or as user fees or 

for any other services. No deductions will be allowed for operating or maintenance costs, including, 
but not limited to gas, electric, water and sewer, other utilities, garbage removal and insurance 

3 .
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charges, whether paid for by the landlord, tenant or a third party. 

iv. Annual Service Charge - The amount the Entity has agreed to pay the City each year 

for municipal services supplied to the Project, which sum is in lieu of any taxes on the Improve- 

ments, pursuant to N..I.S.A. 40A:20—l2. It shall include a payment for all annual excess profit.
A 

v. Auditor's Report — A complete annual financial statement outlining the financial status 
of the Project, which shall also include a certification of Total Project Cost and clear computation 

ofthe annual Net Profit. The contents ofthe Auditor’ s Report shall have been prepared in conformity 

with generally accepted accounting principles and shall contain at a minimum the following: a 

balance sheet, a statement of income, a statement of retained earnings or changes in stockholders’ 

equity, a statement of cash flows, descriptions of accounting policies, notes to financial statements 

and appropriate schedules and explanatory material results of operations, cash flows and any other 

items required by Law. The Auditor’s Report shall be certified as to its conformance with such 

principles by a certified public accountant who is licensed to practice that profession in the State of
E 

New Jersey. 
` 

vi. Certificate of Occupancy — A document, whether temporary or permanent, issued by 
the City authorizing occupancy of a building, in whole or in part, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 52:27D-133. 

vii. Debt Service — The amount required to make annual payments of principal and 

interest or the equivalent thereof on any construction mortgage, permanent mortgage or other 

financing including returns on institutional equity financing and market rate related party debt for 

the Project for a period equal to the term of this Agreement. 

viii. — Shall be a breach of or the failure of the Entity to perform any obligation 

imposed upon the Entity by the terms of this Agreement, or under the Law, beyond any applicable 

grace or cure periods. 

ix. - The term Entity within this Agreement shall mean AHM Housing Associates 
IV, LLC, which Entity is formed and qualified pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:20-5. It shall also include 

any subsequent purchasers or successors in interest of the Project, provided they are formed and 

operate under the Law. i 

x. Improvements or Project — Any building, structure or fixture permanently affixed to 
the land and to be _constructed and tax exempted under this Agreement.
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. xi. In Rem Tax·Foreclosure or Tax Foreclosure - A summary proceeding by which the 
City may enforce a lien for taxes due and owing by tax sale, under N.J.S.A. 54:5-1 to 54:5-129 gt 

gg,. 

xii. Land Taxes - The amount of taxes assessed on the value of land, on which the project 

is located and, if applicable, taxes on any pre-existing improvements. Land Taxes are not exempt; 

however, Land Taxes are applied as a credit against the Annual Service Charge.l 

xiii. Land Tax Payments - Payments made on the quarterly due dates, including approved 

grace periods if any, for Land Taxes as determined by the Tax Assessor and the Tax Collector. . 

S 

xiv. - Law shall refer to the Long Term Tax Exemption Law, as amended and 
supplemented, 40Ai20-1, et gl.; Executive Order of the Mayor O2-003, relating to long 

term tax exemption, as it may be supplemented; Ordinance O2-075 requiring Disclosure of Lobbyist 
Status and Ordinance 

, which authorized the execution of this Agreement and all other 

relevant Federal, State or City statutes, ordinances, resolutions, rules and regulations. 

xv. Low and Moderate Income Affordable Housing - Low and moderate income 
affordable housing shall mean housing affordable to and occupied by persons of low and moderate 
income as defined by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). 

xvi. Minimum Annual Service Charge - The Minimum Annual Service Charge shall beI 

the g|; of: (a) the amount ofthe total taxes levied against all real property in the area covered by 
the Project in the last full tax year in which the area was subject to taxation, which amount the 
parties agree is $0; (b) the sum of $44,476 per year, which sum will be prorated only during Lease 
Up Period and in the years in which Substantial Completion occurs and this Agreement terminates. 

Following Substantial Completion, the Minimum Annual Service Charge set forth in 
subsection (b) shall be paid in each year in which the Annual Service Charge, calculated pursuant 
to N.J.S.A. 4OA:20-12 or this Agreement, would be less than the Minimum Annual Service Charge. 

xvii. Net Profit - The Annual Gross Revenues of the Entity less all annual operating and 
non-operating expenses of the Entity, all determined in accordance with generally accepted 

accounting principles, but: 

(1) there shall be included in expenses: (a) all Annual Service charges paid pursuant to 

40A:20—12; (b) all annual payments to the City of excess profits pursuant to

`
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4OA:20—l 5 or N..l.S.A. 4OA:20- l 6; (c) an annual amount sufficient to amortize (utilizing the straight 

line method—equal annual amounts) the Total Proj ect Cost and all capital costs determined in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, of any other entity whose revenue is 

included in the computation of excess profits over the term of this agreement; (d) all reasonable 

annual operating expenses of the Entity and any other entity whose revenue is included in the 

computation of excess profits including the cost of all management fees, brokerage commissions, 

insurance premiums, all taxes or service charges paid, legal, accounting, or other professional service 

fees, utilities, building maintenance costs, building and office supplies and payments into repair or 

maintenance reserve accounts; (e) all payments of rent includingbut not limited to ground rent by 

the Entity; (f) all debt service; and 

(2) there shall not be included in expenses either depreciation or obsolescence, interest on 

debt, except interest which is part of debt service, income taxes or salaries, bonuses or other 

compensation paid, directly or indirectly to directors, officers and stockholders of the entity, or . 

officers, partners or other persons holding a proprietary ownership interest in the entity. 

xviii. Pronouns — He or it shall mean the masculine, feminine or neuter gender, the singular, 
as well as the plural, as context requires. 

xix. Substantial Completion - The determination by the City that the Project, in whole or 

in part, is ready for the use intended, which ordinarily shall mean the first date on which the Project
I 

receives, or is eligible to receive, any Certificate of Occupancy whether temporary or permanent for 

any portion of the Project.
A 

xx. Tennination — Any act or omission which by operation ofthe terms of this Financial 
Agreement shall cause the Entity to relinquish its tax exemption. .

A 

xxi. Total Project Cost — The total cost of constructing the Project through the date a 

Certificate(s) of Occupancy is issued for the entire Project, which categories of cost are set forth in 

4OA:20—3 (h). There shall be included in Total Project Cost the actual costs incurred by the 

Entity and certified by an independent and qualified architect or engineer, which are associated with 
site remediation and cleanup of enviromnentally hazardous materials or contaminants in accordance 

with State or Federal law and any extraordinary costs incurred including the cost of demolishing 

structures, relocation or removal of public utilities, cost of relocating displaced residents or buildings
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and the clearing of title. The Entity agrees that final Total Project Cost shall not be less than its 

estimated Total Project Cost. 

ARTICLE II - APPROVAL 

Section 2.1 Approval of Tax Exemption 

The City hereby grants its approval for a tax exemption for all the Improvements to be 

constructed and maintained in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement and the 

provisions of the Law which Improvements shall be constructed on certain property known on the 

Official Tax Assessor’s Map ofthe City as: Block 14601, Lots 22, 23, 26 and 36, more commonly 

known by the street address of 320 Duncan Avenue , Jersey City, and described by metes and bounds 

in Exhibit l attached hereto. 

Section 2.2 Approval of Entity ‘ 

Approval is granted to the Entity whose Certificate of Formation is attached hereto as Exhibit 

4. Entity represents that its Certificate contains all the requisite provisions of the Law; has been 

reviewed and approved by the Commissioner ofthe Department of Community Affairs; and has been 

_ 

filed with, as appropriate, the Office of the State Treasurer or Office of the Hudson County Clerk, 

all in accordance with 40A:20—5. 

Section 2.3 Improvements to be Constructed 

Entity represents that it will construct a mixed—income, mixed-finance consisting of four (4) 

buildings with approximately seventy (70) residential rental units, of which sixty-four (64) units will 

be leased exclusively to tenants whose incomes are at or below 60% ofthe area median income, and 

the remaining six (6) units will be market rate residential units; all of which is specifically described 

in the Application attached hereto as Exhibit 3. 

Section 2.4 Construction Schedule 

The Entity agrees to diligently undertake to commence construction and complete the Proj ect 

in accordance with the Estimated Construction Schedule, attached hereto as Exhibit 5, and in 

compliance with any Redevelopment Agreement. 

Section 2.5 Ownership, Management and Control 

The Entity represents that it is the lessee ofthe property upon which the Project is to be con- 

structed. Upon construction, the Entity represents that the Improvements will be used, managed and
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controlled for the purposes set forth in this Agreement and any Redevelopment Agreement.
I 

Section 2.6 Financial Plan
_ 

The Entity represents that the Improvements shall be financed in accordance with the 

Financial Plan attached hereto as Exhibit 6. The Plan sets forth a good faith estimate of Total 

Proj ect Cost, the amortization rate on the Total Proj ect Cost, the source of funds, the interest rates 

to be paid on construction financing, the source and amount of paid-in capital, and the terms of any 

mortgage amortization. · 

, ~ 

Section 2.7 Good Faith Estimate of Initial Sale Prices or Rents 

The Entity represents that its good faith projections of the initial rents and other revenue to 

the Project are set forth in Exhibit 7. 

ARTICLE III — DURATION OF AGREEMENT 
Section 3.1 Term 

So long as there is compliance with the Law and this Agreement, it is understood and agreed 

by the parties hereto that this Agreement shall remain in effect for the earlier of 35 years from the 

date ofthe adoption of Ordinance __ on , 2013, which approved the tax exemption 

or 30 years from the original date of Substantial Completion ofthe Project or ;_20 __. The 
tax exemption shall only be effective during the period of usefulness of the Project and shall 

continue in force only while the Project is owned by a corporation or association formed and 

operating under the Law.
_ 

ARTICLE IV - ANNUAL SERVICE CHARGE
l 

Section 4.1 Annual Service Charge
E 

_ 
In consideration ofthe tax exemption, the Entity shall make the following annual payments 

to the City for services provided to the Project:

I 

(i) City Service Charge: an amount equal to the greater of: the Minimum Annual Service 
Charge or an Annual Service Charge equal to 9% of Annual Gross Revenue for years 1 through 15, and 
12% of Annual Gross Revenue for years 16 through 30,. for the 60% of the area median income units; and 
10% of Annual Gross Revenue for years 1 through 15, and 18% for years 16 through 30 for the market rate 
residential units. The Annual Service Charge shall be billed initially based upon the Entity’s estimates 

of Annual Gross Revenue which shall not be less than the its estimate of Gross Revenue as set forth



in its Financial Plan, attached hereto as Exhibit 6. Thereafter, the Annual Service Charge shall be 

adjusted in accordance with this Agreement. 

A Minimum Armual Service Charge shall be due beginning on the effective date of 
this Agreement. The Annual Service Charge shall be due on the first day of the month following 

the Substantial Completion of the Project. In the event the Entity fails to timely pay the Minimum 

Annual Service Charge or the Amiual Service Charge, the unpaid amount shall bear the highest rate 

of interest permitted in the case of unpaid taxes or tax liens on land until paid. 

(ii) County Service Charge: an amount equal to 5% ofthe Amiual Service Charge upon 
receipt of that charge, for remittance to the County by the City.

i 

Section 4.2 Staged Adjustments 

_The Annual Service Charge shall be adjusted, in Stages over the term of the tax exemption
r 

in accordance with 4OA:20-12(bl as follows: 

i. Stage One: From the lst day ofthe month following Substantial Completion until the 

last day of the 15th year, the Annual Service Charge shall be 9% of Annual Gross Revenue for years 
1 through 15, and 12% of Annual Gross Revenue for years 16 through 30, for the 60% ofthe area median 
income units; and 10% of Annual Gross Revenue for years 1 through 15, and 18% for years 16 through 30 
for the market rate residential units; 

ii. Stage Two: Beginning on the ls' day of the 16th year following Substantial 

Completion until the last day of the 20th year, an amount equal to the greater ofthe Armual Service 

Charge or 20% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of the land and 
Improvements; 

iii. Stage Three: Beginning on the lst day of the 21st year following the Substantial 

Completion until the last day ofthe 25th year, an amount equal to the greater ofthe Annual Service . 

Charge or 40% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of the land and 
Improvements; 

iv. Stage Four: Beginning on the lst day of the 26th year following Substantial 

Completion until the last day of the 28th year, an amount equal to the greater ofthe Annual Service 

Charge or 60% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of the land and 
Improvements. ‘
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v. Final Stage: Beginning on the lst day of the 29th year following Substantial 

» Completion through the date the tax exemption expires, an amount equal to the greater of the 

Annual Service Charge or 80% of the amount of the taxes otherwise due on the assessed value of- 

the land and Improvements.
i 

Section 4.3 Land Tax
A 

The Entity is required to pay both the Annual Service Charge and the Land Tax Payments. 

The Entity is obligated to make timely Land Tax Payments, including any tax on the pre-existing 

improvements, in order to be entitled to a Land Tax credit against the Annual Service Charge for the 

subsequent year. The Entity shall be entitled to credit for the amount, without interest, ofthe Land 

Tax Payments made in the last four preceding quarterly installments against the Annual Service 

Charge. In any quarter that the Entity fails to make any Land Tax Payments when due and owing, 

such delinquency shall render the Entity ineligible for any Land Tax Payment credit against the 

Annual Service Charge. No credit will be applied against the Annual Service Charge for a partial 

payment of Land Taxes. In addition, the City shall have, among this remedy and other remedies, 

the right to proceed against the property pursuant to the In Rem Tax Foreclosure Act, 54:5- 

1, et gi. and/or declare a Default and terminate this`Agreement. - ` 

Section 4.4 Quarterly Installments / Interest 

The Entity expressly agrees that the Annual Service Charge shall be made in quarterly 

installments on those dates when real estate tax payments are due; subject, nevertheless, to 

adjustment for over or underpayment within thirty (30) days after the close of each calendar year. 

In the event that the Entity fails to pay the Annual Service Charge or any other charge due under this 

agreement, the unpaid amount shall bear the highest rate of interest permitted in the case of unpaid
l 

taxes or tax liens on the land until paid in full. 

Section 4.5 Administrative Fee 

The Entity shall also pay an am1ual.Administrative Fee to the City in addition to the Annual 

Service Charge and Land Tax levy. The Administrative Fee shall be calculated as two (2%) percent 

of each prior year’s Annual Service Charge. This fee shall be payable and due on or before 

December 3 lst of each year, and collected in the same manner as the Annual Service Charge. 

Section 4.6 Material Conditions 

. l O



It is expressly agreed and understood that the timely payments of Land Taxes, Minimum . 

Annual Service Charges, Annual Service Charges, including adjustments thereto, Administrative 

Fees, Affordable Housing Contributions, and any interest thereon, are Material Conditions of this 

Agreement.
I 

ARTICLE V — PROJECT EMPLOYMENT AND CONTRACTING AGREEMENT 
Section 5.1 Project Employment and Contracting Agreement 

In order to provide City residents and businesses with certain employment and other 

economic related opportunities, the Entity is subject to the terms and conditions of the Project 

Employment and Contracting Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit 8. 

ARTICLE VI - CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY 
Section 6.1 Certificate of Occupancy 

It is understood and agreed that it shall be the obligation of the Entity to obtain all 

Certificates of Occupancy in a timely manner so as to complete construction in accordance with the 

proposed construction schedule attached hereto as Exhibit 5. The failure to secure the Certificates 
of Occupancy shall subject the Property to full taxation for the period between the date of Substantial 

Completion and the date the Certificate of Occupancy is obtained. 

Section 6.2 Filing of Certificate of Occupancy 

It shall be the primary responsibility ofthe Entity to forthwith file with both the Tax Assessor 
and the Tax Collector a copy of each Certificate of Occupancy. 

Failureof the Entity to file such issued Certificate of Occupancy as required by the preceding 

paragraph, shall not militate against any action or non-action, taken by the City, including, if 
appropriate retroactive billing with interest for any charges determined to be due, in the absence of 

such filing by the Entity.
I 

V 

A I

_ 

ARTICLE VII — ANNUAL REPORTS 
Section 7.1 Accounting System 

The Entity agrees to maintain a system of accounting and internal controls established and 
administered in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 

Section 7.2 Periodic Reports 

A. Auditor’s Report: Within ninety (90) days after the close of each fiscal or calendar year, 

V
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depending on the Entity’s accounting basis that the Agreement shall continue in effect, the Entity 

shall submit to the Mayor and Municipal Council and the NJ Division of Local Government Services 

in the Department of Community Affairs, its Auditor’s Report for the preceding fiscal or calendar 

year. The Auditor’s Report shall include, but not be limited to gross revenue, and the terms and 

interest rate on any mortgage(s) associated with the purchase or construction ofthe Proj ect and such 

details as may relate to the financial affairs of the Entity and to its operation and performance 

hereunder, pursuant to the Law and this Agreement. The Report shall clearly identify and calculate 

the Net Profit for the Entity during the previous year, the excess of which shall be paid to the City 

each year an excess profit is generated. 

B. Total Project Cost Audit: Within ninety (90) days after Substantial Completion of the 

Project, the Entity shall submit to the Mayor, Municipal Council, the Tax Collector and the City 

Clerk, who shall advise those municipal officials required to be advised, an audit of Total Project
h 

Cost, including but not limited to an audit of actual construction costs as certified by the Project 

architect.
l 

C. Disclosure Statement: On the anniversary date of the execution of this Agreement, and 

each and every year thereafter while this agreement is in effect, the Entity shall submit to the 

Municipal Council, the Tax Collector and the City Clerk, who shall advise those municipal officials 

required to be advised, a Disclosure Statement listing the having an ownership interest in 

the Proj ect, and the extent of the ownership interest of each and such additional information as the 

City may request from time to time. All disclosures shall include ownership interests of the 

individual persons owning any corporate interest in the Entity. 

Section 7.3 Inspection/Audit 

The Entity shall permit the inspection of its property, equipment, buildings and other 

facilities of the Project and, if deemed appropriate or necessary, any other related Entity by 

representatives duly authorized by the City or the NJ Division of Local Govermnent Services in the 

Department of Community Affairs. It shall also permit, upon request, examination and audit of its 

books, contracts, records, documents and papers. Such examination or audit shall be made during 

the reasonable hours of the business day, in the presence of an officer or agent designated by the 

Entity for any year during which the tax exemption financial agreement was in full force and effect.
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All costs incurred by the City to conduct a review ofthe Entity’ s audits, including reasonable
A 

attorneys’ fees if appropriate, shall be billed to the Entity and paid to the City as part ofthe Entity’s · 

Annual Service Charge. Delinquent payments shall accrue interest at the same rate as for a 

delinquent service charge. 

ARTICLE VIII- LIMITATION OF PROFITS AND RESERVES 

Section 8.1 Limitation of Profits and Reserves r 

During the period of tax exemption as provided herein, the Entity shall be subject to a V 

limitation of its profits pursuant to the provisions of| 40A:20-l 5. 
The Entity shall have the right to establish a reserve against vacancies, unpaid rentals, and 

reasonable contingencies in an amount equal to five (5%) percent ofthe Gross Revenue ofthe Entity 

for the last full fiscal year preceding the year and may retain such part of the Excess Net Profits as 

is necessary to eliminate a deficiency in that reserve, as provided in 40A:20-15. The reserve 

is to be non-cumulative, it being intended that no further credits thereto shall be permitted after the 

reserve shall have attained the allowable level of five (5%) percent of the preceding year's Gross 

Revenue. Pursuant to 40A:20—l4(b) there is expressly excluded from the calculation of 

Gross Revenue and Net Profit in the determination of Excess Profit, any gain realized by the Entity 

on the sale of any condominium unit, whether or not taxable under federal or state law. 

Section_8.2 Annual Payment of Excess Net Profit 

In the event the Net Profits ofthe Entity, in any year, exceeds the Allowable Net Profits for 

such year, then the Entity, within one hundred and twenty (120) days after the end of the-year, shall 

pay such excess Net Profits to the City as an additional amiual service charge; provided, however, 

that the Entity may maintain a reserve as determined pursuant to aforementioned paragraph 8.1. The 

calculation of the Entity’s Excess Net Profits shall include those project costs directly attributable 

to site remediation and cleanup expenses and any other costs excluded in the definition of Total 

Proj ect Cost in Section l.2 (xx) of this Agreement even though those costs may have been deducted 

from the project costs for purposes of calculating the amiual service charge. 

_ 
Section 8.3 Payment of Reserve! Excess Net Profit Upon Termination, Expiration or Sale 

The date of termination, expiration or sale shall be considered to be the close of the fiscal 

year ofthe Entity. Within ninety (90) days after such date, the Entity shall pay to the City the amount
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of the reserve, if any, maintained by it pursuant to this section and the balance of the Excess Net 

Profit, if any. 

ARTICLE IX - ASSIGNMENT AND/OR ASSUMPTION
A 

Section 9.1 Approval of Sale 

Any sale or transfer of the Proj ect, shall be void unless approved in advance by Ordinance 
of the Municipal Council. It is understood and agreed that the City, on written application by the · 

Entity, will not unreasonably withhold its consent to a sale of the Project and the transfer of this 

Agreement provided l) the new Entity does not own any other Project subject to long term tax 
exemption at the time oftransfer; 2) the new Entity is formed and eligible to operate under the Law;n 

3) the Entity is not then in default of this Agreement or the Law; 4) the Entity's obligations under 

this Agreement are fully assumed by the new Entity; 5) the Entity is comprised of principals 

possessing substantially the same or better business reputation, financial qualifications and credit 

worthiness ofthe Entity; and 6) the Entity pays in full the maximum transfer fee, 2% ofthe Annual 
Service Charge, as permitted by 40A:20-l 0(d). 

Nothing herein shall prohibit any transfer of the ownership interest in the Entity itself 
» provided that the transfer, if greater than 10%, is disclosed to the City in the annual disclosure 

statement or in correspondence sent to the City in advance of the filing of the annual disclosure 

statement. 

Section 9.2 Transfer Application Fee 

Where the consent or approval of the City is sought for approval of a change in ownership 
or sale or transfer ofthe Project, the Entity shall be required to pay to the City a new tax exemption

A 

application fee for the legal and administrative services of the City, as it relates to the review, 

_ 

preparation and/or submission of documents to the Municipal Council for appropriate action on the 

requested assignment. The fee shall be non-refundable. 

. ARTICLE X - COMPLIANCE 

Section 10.1 Operation 

During the term of this Agreement, the Project shall be maintained and operated in 

accordance with the provisions of the Law. Operation of Proj ect under this Agreement shall not
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only be terminable as provided by 40A:20-1, Q seq., as amended and supplemented, but 
also by a Default under this Agreement. The Entity's failure to comply with the Law shall constitute 

a Default under this Agreement and the City shall, among its other remedies, have the right to 

terminate the tax exemption. 

Section 10.2 Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative
5 

During the term of this Agreement, the Entity must comply with Executive Order 2002-005, 

and Ordinance 02-075, requiring Written Disclosure of Lobbyist Representative Status. The Entity’s 

failure to comply with the Executive Order or the Ordinance shall constitute a Default under this 

Agreement and the City shall, among its other remedies, have the right to terminate the tax 

exemption.

H

" 

ARTICLE XI - DEFAULT 

Section 11.1 Default 

Default shall be failure ofthe Entity to conform with the terms of this Agreement or failure 

of the Entity to perform any obligation imposed by the Law, beyond any applicable notice, cure or 

grace period. 

Section 11.2 Cure Upon Default
g 

Should the Entity be in Default, the City shall send written notice to the Entity ofthe Default 

[Default Notice]. The Default Notice shall set forth with particularity the basis of the alleged 

Default. The Entity shall have sixty (60) days, from receipt of the Default Notice, to cure any 

Default which shall be the sole and exclusive remedy available to the Entity. However, if in the 

reasonable opinion ofthe City, the Default cannot be cured within sixty (60) days using reasonable 

diligence, the City will extend the time to cure.
A 

Subsequent to such sixty (60) days, or any approved extension, the City shall have the right 

to terminate this Agreement in accordance with Section 12.1.
I 

Should the Entity be in default due to a failure to pay any charges defined as Material 

Conditions in Section 4.7, the Entity shall not be subject to the default procedural remedies as 

provided herein but shall allow the City to proceed immediately to terminate the Agreement as 

provided in Article XII herein. 

p 

Section 11.3 Remedies Upon Default ‘

I
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The City shall, among its other remedies, have the right to proceed against the property 

pursuant to the In Rem Tax Foreclosure Act, 54:5-1, Q gr. In order to secure the full and 
` 

timely payment ofthe Annual Service Charge, the City on its own behalf or on behalf ofthe Trustee, 

reserves the right to prosecute an In Rem Tax Foreclosure action against the Proj ect Area in 

accordance with Applicable Law, as more fully set forth in this Financial Agreement. 

In addition, the City may declare a Default and terminate this Agreement. Any default arising 

out ofthe Entity’s failure to pay Land Taxes, the Minimum Annual Service Charge, Administrative 

Fees, Affordable Housing Contribution, or the Annual Service Charges shall not be subject to the 

default procedural remedies as provided in Article XI herein, but shall allow the City to proceed 

immediately to terminate the Agreement as provided in Article XII. All of the remedies provided 

in this Agreement to the City, and all rights and remedies granted to it by law and equity shall be 

. cumulative and concurrent. No termination of any provision of this Agreement shall deprive the City 

of any of its remedies or actions against the Entity because of its failure to pay Land Taxes, the 

Minimum Annual Service Charge, Annual Service Charge, Affordable Housing Contribution or 

Administrative Fees. This right shall apply to arrearages that are due and owing at the time or which, 

under the terms hereof, would in the future become due as if there had been no termination. Further,
_ 

the bringing of any action for Land Taxes, the Minimum Annual Service Charge, the Annual Service 

Charge, Affordable Housing Contribution, Administrative Fees, or for breach of covenant or the 

resort to any other remedy herein provided for the recovery of Land Taxes shall not be construed as 

a waiver of the rights to terminate the tax exemption or proceed with a tax sale or Tax Foreclosure
I 

action or any other specified remedy. 

In the event of a Default on the part of the Entity to pay any charges set forth in Article IV, 

the City among its other remedies, reserves the right to proceed against the Entity’s land and 

property, in the manner provided by the In Rem Foreclosure Act, and any act supplementary or 
amendatory thereof Whenever the word taxes appear, or is applied, directly or impliedly to mean 

taxes or municipal liens on land, such statutory provisions shall be read, as far as is pertinent to this 
` 

Agreement, as if the charges were taxes or municipal liens on land. · 

ARTICLE XII- TERMINATION 
Section 12.1 Termination Upon Default of the Entity · 
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In the event the Entity fails to cure or remedy the Default within the time period provided in 

Section 11.2, the City may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice to the 

Entity [Notice of Termination]. 

Section 12.2 Voluntary Termination by the Entity 

The Entity may notify the City that it will relinquish its status as a tax exempt Project, after 

the expiration of one year from the Substantial Completion of the Project , as of the January 1s‘ of 

the year next ensuing. The Notice of Voluntary Termination must be received by the City no later 

than October 1S' ofthe tax year preceding the calendar year in which the termination is to occur. As 

of the date so set, the tax exemption, the Armual Service Charges and the profit and dividend 

· 

restrictions shall terminate. However, under no circumstances will the Entity be entitled to any 

refund, in whole or in part, of any funds paid to the City to obtain the tax exemption, including but 

A 
not limited to the Affordable Housing Contribution. In addition, the due date for all Affordable 

Housing Contribution and any other fees that the Entity agreed to pay under this Agreement, shall 

be accelerated so that all fees to be paid shall be due on January 1s' as a condition precedent of the 

voluntary termination. 

Section 12.3 Final Accounting 

- Within ninety (90). days after the date of termination, whether by affirmative action of the 

Entity or by virtue ofthe provisions ofthe Law or pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, the Entity 

shall provide a final accounting and pay to the City the reserve, if any, pursuant to the provisions of 

N.J.S.A. 40A:20-13 and 15 as well as any remaining excess Net Profits. For purposes of rendering 

a final accounting the termination of the Agreement shall be deemed to be the end ofthe fiscal year 

for the Entity. 

Section 12.4 Conventional Taxes 

Upon Termination or expiration of this Agreement, the tax exemption for the Proj ect shall 

expire and the land and the Improvements thereon shall thereafter be assessed and conventionally 

taxed according to the general law applicable to other nonexempt taxable property in the City. 

ARTICLE XIII - DISPUT E RESOLUTION 
Section 13.1 Arbitration 

In the event of a breach of the within Agreement by either of the parties hereto or a dispute 

, 17
I



arising between the parties in reference to the terms and provisions as set forth herein, either party 

V may apply to the Superior Court of New Jersey by an appropriate proceeding, to settle and resolve 
the dispute in such fashion as will tend to accomplish the purposes of the Law. In the event the 

Superior Court shall not entertain jurisdiction, then the parties shall submit the dispute to the 

American Arbitration Association in New Jersey to be determined in accordance with its rules and
A 

regulations in such a fashion to accomplish the purpose ofthe Long Term Tax Exemption Law. The 

cost for the arbitration shall be borne by the Entity. The parties agree that the Entity may not file an 

action in Superior Court or with the Arbitration Association unless the Entity has first paid in full 

all charges defined in Section 4.8 as Material Conditions. 

Section 13.2 Appeal of Assessment
A 

In calculating the amount of "staged” tax adjustments that is, taxes otherwise due, pursuant 

to Section 4.2 and 4OA:20—l2, either party may file an appeal of the conventional 

assessment to determine the value of land and improvements.
A 

ARTICLE XIV — WAIVER ' 

Section 14.1 Waiver
l 

Nothing contained in this Financial Agreement or otherwise shall constitute a waiver or 

relinquishment by the City of any rights and remedies, including, without limitation, the right to 

terminate the Agreement and tax exemption for violation of any of the conditions provided herein.
I 

Nothing herein shall be deemed to limit the City’s right to audit or recover any amount which the 

City has under law, in equity, or under any provision of this Agreement. ` 

ARTICLE XV - INDEMNIFICATION 
Section 15.1 Defined

_ 

It is tmderstood and agreed that in the event the City shall be named as party defendant in any 
action by a third party alleging any breach, default or a violation of any of the provisions of this 

Agreement and/or the provisions of 4OA:20-l g gp, the Entity shall inderrmify and hold 
the Cityharmless against any and all liability, loss, cost, expense (including reasonable attorneys’ 

fees and costs, through trial and all stages of any appeal, including the cost of enforcing this 

indemnity) arising out of Agreement. In addition, the Entity expressly waives all statutory or 

common law defenses or legal principles which would defeat the purposes of this indemnification. 

»

I
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The Entity also agrees to defend the suit at its own expense. However, the City maintains the right 

to intervene as a party thereto, to which intervention the Entity consents; the expense thereof to be 

borne by the City. 

ARTICLE XVI- NOTICE 

Section 16.1 Certified Mail 

Any notice required hereunder to be sent by either party to the other shall be sent by certified 

or registered mail, return receipt requested. 

Section 16.2 Sent by City 

When sent by the City to the Entity the notice shall be addressed to: 

AHM Housing Associates IV, LLC 
. c/o Pennrose Properties, LLC 

One Brewery Park
J 

1301 N. 31s‘ Street 

Philadelphia, PA 19121-4495 
Attn: Timothy I. Henkel, Vice President 

and 

Genova Burns Giantomasi & Webster 
494 Broad Street 

Newark, NJ 07102 
Attn: Elnardo J. Webster II, Esq.

9 

unless prior to giving of notice the Entity shall have notified the City in writing otherwise. 

W 

In addition, provided the City is sent a formal written notice in accordance with this 

Agreement, of the name and address of Entity’s Mortgagee, the City agrees to provide such 

Mortgagee with a copy of any notice required to be sent to the Entity. 

Section 16.3 Sent by Entity 

When sent by the Entity to the City, it shall be addressed to: 

City of Jersey City, Office of the City Clerk 

City Hall 

280 Grove Street 

Jersey City, New Jersey 07302, 

with copies sent to the Corporation Counsel, the Business Administrator, and the Tax Collector 

unless prior to the giving of notice, the City shall have notified the Entity otherwise. The notice to 

the City shall identify the Project to which it relates, (i.e., the Urban Renewal Entity and the 

· 
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Property’s Block and Lot number). 

ARTICLE XVII-SEVERABILITY 

Section 17.1 Severability 
_

L 

If any term, covenant or condition of this Agreement or the Application, except a Material 

Condition, shall be judicially declared to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this 

Agreement or the application of such term, covenant or condition to persons or circumstances other 

than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby, and each 

term, covenant or condition of this Agreement shall be valid and be enforced to the fullest extent 

permitted by law. 

lf a Material Condition shall be judicially declared to be invalid or unenforceable and 

provided the Entity is not in Default of this Agreement, the parties shall cooperate with each other 

to take the actions reasonably required to restore the Agreement in a manner contemplated by the 

parties and the Law. This shall include, but not be limited to the authorization and re-execution of 

this Agreement in a form reasonably drafted to effectuate the original intent of the parties and the 

Law. However, the City shall not be required to restore the Agreement if it would modify a Material 

Condition, the amount ofthe periodic adjustments or any other term of this Agreement which would 

result in any economic reduction or loss to the City.. 

ARTICLE XVIII - MISCELLANEOUS 
Section 18.1 Construction ` 

This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws ofthe State of 

New Jersey, and without regard to or aid of any presumption or other rule requiring construction 
against the party drawing or causing this Agreement to be drawn since counsel for both the Entity 

and the City have combined in their review and approval of same. 

Section 18.2 Conflicts 

_The parties agree that in the event of a conflict between the Application and the language 

contained in the Agreement, the Agreement shall govern and prevail. ln the event of conflict 

between the Agreement and the Law, the Law shall govern and prevail. 

Section 18.3 Oral Representations 

There have been no oral representations made by either of the parties hereto which are not
I

‘
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contained in this Agreement. This Agreement, the Ordinance authorizing the Agreement, and the l’ 

Application constitute the entire Agreement between the parties and there shall be no modifications 

thereto other thani by a written instrument approved and executed by both parties and delivered to 

each party. 

Section 18.4 Entire Document 

This Agreement and all conditions in the Ordinance ofthe Municipal Council approving this
8 

Agreement are incorporated in this Agreement and made a part hereof 

_ Section 18.5 Good Faith 

V In their dealings with each other, utmost good faith is required from the Entity and the City.
L 

W ARTICLE XIX - EXHIBITS 

Section 19 Exhibits
. 

The following Exhibits are attached hereto and incorporated herein as if set forth at length 
herein:

_ 

1. Metes and Bounds description of the Project; 

2. Ordinance of the City authorizing the execution of this Agreement; 

3. The Application with Exhibits; 

4. Certificate of the Entity; 

5. Estimated Construction Schedule; 

. 6. The Financial Plan for the undertaking of the Proj ect; 

7. Good Faith Estimate of Initial Rents; 

8. Project Employment and Contracting Agreement;
W 

g 

9. Architect's Certification of Actual Construction Costs. 

l0. Entity’s Ground Lease.
_ 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused these presents to be executed the day . 

and year first above written. 

WITNESS: AHM HOUSING ASSOCIATES IV, LLC

2 l



ATTEST: CITY OF JERSEY CITY 

ROBERT BYRNE JOHN KELLY 
CITY CLERK - BUSINESS ADMINISTRATOR
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5-01-13
_ PROJECT EMPLOYMENT & CONTRACTING AGREEMENT 

This Proj ect Employment & Contracting Agreement is made on the _ day of , 2013, 
between the CITY OF JERSEY CITY [City] and AHM HOUSING ASSOCIATES IV, L.L.C., 
having its principal office at c/o Pemrrose Properties, LLC, One Brewery Park, 1301 N. 3 l" Street, 
Philadelphia, PA 19121-4495. Recipient agrees as follows: 

I. Definitions: 

The following words and terms, when used in this agreement, shall have the following 
meanings unless the context clearly indicates otherwise. 

1. "City" means the Business Administrator of the City of Jersey City, or his designee, 
including any person or entity which enters into a contract with the City to implement, in 
whole or in part, this agreement. 

2. "Construction Contract" means any agreement for the erection, repair, alteration or 
demolition of any building, structure, bridge, roadway, or other improvement on a Project 
Site. ’ 

3. "Contractor" means any party performing or offering to perform a prime contract on behalf 
of the Recipient. 

4. "DEO” means the Division of Economic Opportunity under the Department of 
Administration, located at 280 Grove Street, Jersey City, NJ 07302, Telephone #(201) 547- 
561 1. DEO is in charge of Proj ect Employment & Contracting coordination and monitoring 3 

on projects receiving abatements. 

5. "Economic Incentive" means a tax abatement or exemption for a property or project which 
requires approval of the Municipal Council and which reduces the annual amount of taxes 
otherwise due, by $25,000 or more in the aggregate; 

6. "Employment" means any job or position during the construction and operational phase of 
the proj ect. It includes positions created as a result of internal promotions, terminations, or 

V expansions within the Recipient's work force which are to be filled by new employees. 
However, positions filled through promotion from within the Recipient's existing work force 
are not covered positions under this agreement. 

7. "Local Business" means a bona fide business located in Jersey City. 

8. Mayor J erramiah T. Healy's Business Cooperative Program means the group within DEO 
under the Department of Administration responsible for collecting local and minority 
business contracts and capability information. This group operates the Supplier Alert service 
which is to be used by the Recipient to meet their good faith business contracting and 
construction subcontracting goals.
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9. "Minority" means a person who is African, Hispanic, Asian, or American Indian defined as 
follows: 

a) "African—American" means a person having origins in any ofthe black racial groups 
of Africa. . 

b) "Hispanic" means a person of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, Central or South 
American or other Latino culture or origin, regardless of race, excluding, however, 
persons of European origin. 

c) "Asian" means a person having origins in any of the original people of the F ar East, 
Southeast Asia, and subcontinent India, Hawaii or the Pacific Islands. 

d) "American Indian" means a person having origins in any of the original people of 
· North America who maintains cultural identification through tribal affiliation or 

community recognition. 

10. "Minority or Woman Owned Local Business" means a bona fide business located in Jersey 
City which is fifty-one (51%) percent or more owned and controlled by either a Minority or 
woman. I 

ll. "Non—Traditional Jobs" means jobs which are held by less than twenty (20%) percent 
women, as reported by the New Jersey Department of Labor, Division of Labor Market, and 
Demographic Research for Jersey City, which report shall be on file with the City Clerk. 

12. "Permanent Jobs" mean newly created long term salaried positions, whether permanent, 
_ 

temporary, part time or seasonal. 

13. "Project or Project Site" means the specific work location or locations specified in the 
contract. 

14. The "Project Employment & Contracting Coordinator” is a member ofthe DEO staff under
U 

the Department of Administration who is in charge of coordinating Project Employment& 
Contracting projects. Contractors and developers engaged in projects covered by Project 

· Employment & Contracting Agreements will direct inquiries to the Project Employment& 
Contracting Coordinator. 

15. The "Proj ect Employment & Contracting Monitor" or "Monitor" is a member of the DEO
, 

staff under the Department of Administration directly under the command of the Project 
Employment & Contracting Coordinator, who is in charge of monitoring the site, collecting 
the reports and documentation, and other day-to-day Project Employment & Contracting 
housekeeping as stipulated by this agreement. 

_ 

16. The “Project Employment & Contracting Officer" or "Of`ficer" is an employee of the 
Recipient who is designated by the Recipient to make sure the Recipient is in compliance 
with the Recipient’s Project Employment & Contracting agreement.
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1 7. "Recipient" means any individual, partnership, association, organization, corporation or other 
entity, whether public or private, or for profit or non—profit, or agent thereof, which receives 
an Economic Incentive and shall include any Contractor, Subcontractor or agent of the

p 

Recipient. 

18. "The Registry" or "Jersey City Employment Registry" means a list maintained by the City 
or its designee of Jersey City residents seeking employment and Local Businesses, including 
Minority or Woman Owned Local Businesses, seeking contracts. 

19. "Subcontract" means a binding legal relationship involving performance of a contract that . 

is part of a prime contract. 
A U 

20. -"Subcontractor" means a third party that is engaged by the prime Contractor to perform under
" 

a subcontract all or part of the work included in an original contract.
4 

21. "Substantial Completion” means the determination by the City that the Project, in whole or 
in part, is ready for the use intended, which ordinarily shall mean the date on which the 
Proj ect receives, or is eligible to receive any Certificate of Occupancy for any portion ofthe 
Project. 

II. Purpose: 

The City wishes to assure continuing employment opportunities for City residents, 
particularly residents who are Minorities, and business opportunities for Local Businesses, especially 
Minority and Women Owned Local Businesses, with employers located in or relocating to the City 
who are the Recipients of Economic Incentives. The City has determined to accomplish that goal 
by requiring the Recipient of an Economic Incentive to act in Good Faith, as defined herein, and

, 

discharge its obligations under this Agreement. To the extent mandated by State and Federal law and 
so long as the Entity discharges its Good Faith obligations under this agreement, the City 
acknowledges that the Recipient and its contractors are free to hire whomever they choose. 

III. Good Faith Goals: I 

In the event the Recipient is able to demonstrate that its work force already meets the goals 
set forth below or is able to meet such goals during the term of this agreement, the Recipient will not 
be required to comply with the interviewing or reporting obligations set forth in Section VI 1., A-L 
(Construction Jobs) and Section VI, 2., A—J (Permanent Jobs). All goals for Construction Jobs shall 
be calculated as a percentage ofthe total number of work hours in each trade from the beginning of 
the project to its completion. 

1. Employment: The Recipient shall make a Good Faith effort to achieve the goal of a work 
_ 

force representing fifty-one (51%) percent City residents, fifty-one (51%) percent of whom are 
residents who are Minorities and, in Non-Traditional Jobs, six point nine (6.9%) percent of whom 
are residents who are women, it being understood that one employee may satisfy more than one 
category.

3
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2. Business Contracting: The Recipient shall make a Good Faith effort to achieve the goal 
of awarding twenty (20%) percent ofthe dollar amount of its contracts to Local Businesses, fifty-one 
(51%) percent of which shall be Minority or Women Owned Local Businesses. If fifty—one (51%) 
percent of Minority or Women Owned Local Businesses cannot be obtained, that percentage of . 

contracts must still be applied to local vendors. 

IV. Recipient Designee: 

The Recipient shall designate a principal officer of its firm to be responsible for 
administering the agreement detailed herein and to report to and confer with the City in order to 
discharge its Good Faith obligations as defined in this agreement. This officer should be designated 

· 

as the Proj ect Employment & Contracting Officer. 

The Recipient should send a letter of introduction regarding the “Project Employment & 
Contracting Compliance Officer” to the Proj ect Employment & Contracting Coordinator prior to any 
preconstruction meetings. An example of this letter can be found in Appendix A. This principle 
officer should also be present for all preconstruction meetings.

V 

The Recipient should send a letter regarding the "Proj ect Employment & Contracting Compliance 
Officer" to the employees of the Recipient’s company. An example of this letter can be found in 
Appendix AZ 

V. Term: 

This agreement shall be in effect for a period co-terminus with the effective period ofthe tax 
exemption [the Economic Incentive]. Thus, it will commence on the date the City Council adopted 
Ordinance approving the tax exemption and terminate the earlier of 35 years from the date 
ofthe adoption of that Ordinance or 30 years from the date of Substantial Completion ofthe Proj ect. 

VI. Good Faith Defined:
l 

1. Construction Jobs: Good Faith shall mean compliance with all ofthe following conditions: 

A. Initial Manning Report: 

i) Prior to the commencement of their work on the Proj ect, each Contractor 
/Subcontractor shall prepare an Initial Manning Report. 

ii) The Initial Manning Report should contain an estimate of the total hours in each 
construction trade or craft and the number of hours to be worked by City residents, 
including a list of the number of minority residents and women residentspthat will 

c work in each trade or craft, including the work hours to be performed by such 
employees of any and all Contractors and Subcontractors. Attached hereto as 
Appendix B is the Recipient’s Initial Manning Report.



iii) The Initial Manning Report shall be filed with the Project Employment and 

_ 

Contracting Monitor, who must accept said Report prior to the Recipient entering 
into any construction contract. An example of this acceptance letter is given in 
Appendix C. ‘ 

B. Developer’s Contracting Obligations _ 

i) Once the developer submits the proj ect’ s initial manning report, he/ she must forward 
4 a letter with requests for quotation or bid to Mayor Jerramiah T. Healy's Business 

Cooperative Program for local and minority vendors for any construction or building 

operating goods, services and sub—contracting opportunities. An example of this 
letter is given in Appendix D. 

ii) The developer shall make a good faith effort to contact those businesses and 
individuals who submit bids. This effort must be documented by letter, which will 
be sent to Mayor J erramiah T. Healy's Business Cooperative Program at DEO under 
the Department of Administration. An example of this letter can be found in 
Appendix D2. 

C. Contractor's/Subcontractor’ 
sl 
Compliance Statement 

Prior to commencement of their work on the Proj ect, each Contractor or Subcontractor must 
agree in writing to comply with this agreement and the employment goals elaborated herein. An 
example of this Compliance Statement can be found in Appendix E. 

D. Union Statement of Using Its Best Efforts 

i) Prior to commencement of their work on the Project, the contractor/subcontractor 
must submit a statement expressing its adherence to the Project Employment & 
Contracting Agreement to each union with which he/ she has a collective bargaining 
agreement covering workers to be employed on the proj ect. 

ii) The Compliance Statement shall include a union statement for the particular union 
to sign, which claims the union will use its best efforts to comply with the 
employment goals articulated in the Project Employment & Contracting agreement. 
This compliance statement is detailed in Appendix F. A copy of the signed 
compliance statement must be sent to the Project Employment & Contracting 
Monitor in DEO under the Department of Administration before work starts in order 
for a developer to be in compliance. 

‘ 

iii) The Recipient will require the Contractor or Subcontractor to promptly notify the 
City of any refusal or failure of a union to sign the statement. If a particular union 

» refuses to sign a statement, the Recipient will document its efforts to obtain such 
statement and the reasons given by the union for not signing such statement, and 
submit such documentation to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor in 
DEO under the Department of Administration.



E. Sub-Contractors 

The developer shall require that each prime contractor be responsible for the compliance of 
his/her subcontractors with the aforementioned Proj ect Employment & Contracting requirements 
during the performance ofthe contract. Whenever the contractor sub—contracts a portion ofthe work 
on the project, the contractor shall bind the subcontractor to the obligations contained in these 
supplemental conditions to the full extent as if he/she were the contractor.

i 

F. Union Apprentices 

The contractor is responsible for assuring that resident and minority apprentices account for 
at least fifty (50%) percent of the total hours worked by union apprentices on the job in each trade 
listed in which apprentices are employed, according to the apprentice—to-journey—worker ratio 
contained in the collective bargaining agreement between the various unions, and shall hold each of 
his/her subcontractors to this requirement. The Recipient will require the contractor or subcontractor 
to promptly notify the City of any refusal of a union to utilize resident and minority apprentices. 

G. Monthly Manning Report 

i) The Recipient will cause the Contractor to complete and submit Monthly Project 
Manning Reports to the Proj ect Employment & Contracting Monitor in DEO under 
the Department of Administration by the seventh day of the month following the 
month during which the work is performed, for the duration of the contract. 

ii) The report will accurately reflect the total hours in each construction trade or craft 
and the number of hours worked by City residents, including a list of the number of 
minority resident and women resident workers in each trade or craft, and will list 

- separately the work hours performed by such employees of the Contractor and each 
of its Subcontractors during the previous month. The Monthly Manning Report shall 
be in the form attached hereto as Appendix G. 

iii) The Recipient is responsible for maintaining or causing the Contractor to maintain 
records supporting the reported work hours of its Contractors or Subcontractors. 

H.
V 

Monthly Certified Payroll Report
_ 

i) The Recipient will cause the Contractor to furnish the Project Employment & l 

Contracting Monitor with copies of its weekly Certified Payroll reports. The reports 
will specify the residence, gender and ethnic/racial origin of each worker, work hours 
and rate of pay and benefits provided. The Certified Payroll report shall be in the 
form attached hereto as Appendix H. 

ii) Payroll reports must be submitted on a monthly basis with the Monthly Manning 
Report or the Recipient is no longer in compliance.

6



I. Egual Employment Opportunity Reports 

Prior to commencement of work on the Proj ect, the Recipient will request copies ofthe most 

_ 

recent Local Union Report (EEO—3) and Apprenticeship Information Report (EEO_—2) which are 
required to be filed with the US Commission of Equal Employment Opportunity Commission by the 
collective bargaining unit. These reports will be forwarded to the Project Employment & Contracting 

‘ 

Monitor within one month of the signing of the Project Employment & Contracting Agreement.
I 

J. Other Reports 

In addition to the above reports, the Recipient shall furnish such reports or other documents 
to the City as the City may request from time to time in order to carry out the purposes of this 
agreement. 

K. Records Access 

The Recipient will insure that the City will have reasonable access to all records and files s 

reasonably necessary to confirm the accuracy of the information provided in the reports. 

L. Work Site Access For Monitor 
n

U 

i) The City will physically monitor the work sites subject to this agreement to verify the 
accuracy of the monthly reports. Each work site will be physically monitored 
approximately once every two weeks, and more frequently if it is deemed reasonably 
necessary by the City. The City's findings shall be recorded in a "Site Visit Report." 
An example of a bi—weekly site visit report can be found in Appendix I. 

ii) The Recipient shall require the Contractor and Sub—contractor to cooperate with the 
City's site monitoring activities and inform the City as to the dates they are working 
at the Project site. This includes specifically instructing the on-site construction 
manager about the monitoring process, and informing him/her that the monitor will 
contact him/her to set up an initial meeting. In the case of projects with multiple 

" 

locations, the Recipient shall inform the City of the dates they are working at each 
‘ 

site location(s) where they are working, in order to facilitate the monitoring. 

2. Permanent Jobs: Good Faith shall mean compliance with all ofthe following conditions: 

A. Pre-hiring Job Awareness: At least eight (8) months prior to the hiring of an Recipient’s 
permanent workforce, the Proj ect Employment & Contracting officer for the Recipient will sit down 
with the head of the Registry to discuss how the Recipient plans to hire its permanent workforce. 
The following issues should be covered in this meeting: 

i) whether subcontractors will be used in the hiring process. 
ii) the specific types of jobs that need to be filled. 
iii) the qualifications needed for these particular jobs. 
iv) possible training programs offered by the permanent employer.
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v) the Recipient’s goals and how it plans to meet these goals. 
vi) any other issues which need to be addressed by the Registry. 

l. Subcontractor Notification -- If the Recipient decides to subcontract any portion or all of its 
permanent workforce, then the Recipient must receive a signed acknowledgment from the 
subcontracting party that it will abide by the Proj ect Employment & Contracting Agreement before 
said subcontractor begins staffing permanent employees. The Recipient must forward a copy ofthe 
signed acknowledgment to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor. An example of this 
signed acknowledgment can be found in Appendix E. 

l 

2. Subcontractor Pre-Hiring Job Awareness Meeting -- Each subcontractor hired to staff 
permanent job positions must appoint a Proj ect Employment & Contracting Officer to meet with the 
head of the Registry to discuss the same issues presented above in VI 2.A(I-vi).

_ 

3. Subcontractors of Subcontractors--Subcontractors of subcontractors are subject to the same 
requirements for the initial subcontractors above in Section VI 2.A. 

B. Documentation of Hiring Plan--Once the Pre-Hiring Job Awareness Meeting has taken place, 
the Recipient must put together a document with goals and totals for future permanent employment 
needs. This plan should summarize all that was discussed in the Pre-Hiring Awareness Meeting, list 
estimates for manpower needs, set residential and minority employment goals commensurate with 
the Proj ect Employment & Contracting Agreement, and show how the Recipient plans to meet these 
goals. An example of this plan is found in Appendix J. 

C. Pre-Hiring Notification: At least ten (10) working days prior to advertising for any 
employees, the Recipient or the Recipient’s subcontractor shall provide the Registry with a written 
notice, which shall state the job title, job description and minimum qualifications, rate of pay, hours 
of work and the hiring date for each position to be filled, in qualitative and objective terms which 
will enable the Registry to refer qualified applicants to the Recipient. 

D. Advertisement: At the request of the City, or because the City does not have qualified 
applicants to refer to the Recipient, the Recipient will place an advertisement for the jobs in a 
newspaper which is regularly published in Jersey City. The Recipient must furnish the Project 
Employment & Contracting Coordinator in DEO under the Department of Administration with a 
copy of this advertisement.

. 

E. Pre-Hiring Interview: The Recipient shall interview any qualified applicants referred to it 
from the Registry, to be maintained by the City or its designee. In the event advertisement is 
required, the Recipient agrees to interview any qualified persons responding to the advertisement. 

F. Semi-Amrual Employment Reports: The Recipient will submit written semi-annual 
employment reports to the Project Employment & Contracting Monitor in the form to be provided 
by the City. The report will describe the job, whether the job is held by a City resident, minority 
resident or woman resident. The report will explain in writing the reasons why any qualified 
applicant referred by the Registry (or in the event advertisement is required, any qualified person 
responding to the advertisement) was not hired. An example of this report is found in Appendix K.
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G. Record Access: The Recipient shall provide the City with reasonable access to all files and 
records including payroll and personnel information reasonably necessary to confirm the accuracy 
of the information set forth in the semi-amiual reports. 

H. iWork Place Access: The Recipient shall provide the City with reasonable access to the site 
to physically monitor the work site to verify the accuracy of the information set forth in the semi- 
annual reports. 

I. Other Reports, Documents: In addition to the above reports, the Recipient shall furnish such 
reports or other documents that the City may request from time to time in order to implement the 
purposes of this agreement. 

J. Incorporation of Agreement: The Recipient shall incorporate the provisions of this 
Agreement in all contracts, agreements and purchase orders for labor with any service, maintenance, 
security or management agent or Contractor engaged by the Recipient whose personnel will be 
assigned to the Recipient proj ect. 

3. Business Contracting
A 

Good Faith shall mean compliance with all of the following conditions: 

l) Solicitation of Businesses: 

a) One month before accepting bids for goods and services, the Recipient must forward 
a letter with requests for quotation or bid to Mayor J erramiah T. Healy's Business 
Cooperative Program for local and local minority vendors for any construction or 
building operating goods, services and subcontracting opportunities. An example of 
this letter can be found in Appendix D. » 

b) After submission of bids, the Recipient will document whether the bid was accepted 
or rejected, and state the reason why. An example of this documentation can be found t 

in Appendix D2. 

i) Semi-Armual Purchasing Reports: The Recipient will submit written semi- 
annual purchasing reports which will include a list of all contracts awarded 
over a six month period and the dollar amounts of these contracts. The 
reports will specify the number and dollar amount of contracts awarded to 
Local Businesses and Minority or Women Owned Local Businesses. An 
example of these reports can be found in Appendix L. 

ii) No Utilization of Local and Local Minority Vendors As Conduits For 
Vendors That Are Not Local Or Minority Owned: 

The Recipient pledges not to use local and local minority vendors solely as conduits for vendors that 
are not local and minority owned. Any discovery by DEO under the Department of Administration 
of a Recipient, either knowingly or unknowingly, using the masthead of a local or minority owned

.



business as a way to get credit for local or minority employment when it should not, will 
immediately subject the Recipient to the penalties listed in Section VIII (d) below. 

4. Summation of Documentation Needed For Compliance with Agreement 

1. Letter Designating Proj ect Employment & Contracting Officer (Appendix A) 
2. Letter designating Project employment & Contracting Officer to Recipient’s Employees 

(App) AZ
. 

3. Example of Initial Manning Report (Appendix B) · 

4.
i 

Letter Of Acceptance of Initial Mamring Report (Appendix C) 
5. Letter From Developer Forwarding Requests for Quotation or Bid for Minority and 

Residential Vendors from Mayor Jerramiah T. Healy's Business Cooperative Program 
(Appendix D) 

6. Documentation of Bid Submission (Appendix D2) 
7. Letter Expressing Proj ect Employment & Contracting Obligations to Contractors/ 

Subcontractors (Appendix E) 
8. Union Statement of Best Efforts (Appendix F) 
9. Example of Monthly Manning Report (Appendix G) 
10. Example of Monthly Certified Payroll Report (Appendix H) 
11. Example of Bi—Weekly Site Visit Report (Appendix I) 
12. Example of` Documentation of Hiring Plan (Appendix J) 
13. Example of Semi-Annual Employment Report (Appendix K) 
14. Example of Semi-Annual Purchasing Report (Appendix L) 

VII. Notices of Violation: . 

1. Advisory Notice: The City will issue a written Advisory Notice to the Recipient if there is 
non-compliance with a Good Faith requirement as defined in this agreement. The Advisory 
Notice shall explain in sufficient detail the basis ofthe alleged violation, The Recipient shall 

A 

have four (4) working days to correct the violation. An example of an Advisory Notice can 
be found in Appendix M. 

2. Violation Notice: If the alleged violation set forth in the Advisory Notice has not been 
corrected to the satisfaction ofthe City within four (4) working days, the City shall then issue 

. a Violation Notice to the Recipient. The Violation Notice shall explain in sufficient detail 
the basis ofthe alleged, continuing violation. The Recipient will have three (3) working days 
to correct the violation. An example of a Violation Notice can be found in Appendix N. 

3. Correcting the Violation: Either or both the Advisory Notice or the Violation Notice may 
be considered corrected if the Recipient satisfies the requirements of this agreement and so

t 

advises the City in writing, subject to confirmation by the City. 

4. Extension of Time to Correction: Either the Advisory Notice or the Violation Notice may 
be held in abeyance and the time for correction extended if the Recipient enters into 
satisfactory written agreement with the City for corrective action which is designed to 
achieve compliance. If Recipient fails to abide by the terms of such agreement the violation 
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will be considered not corrected. 

5. Meetings Concerning Violations: The City may provide an opportunity for a meeting with 
the Recipient, his Contractors or Subcontractors in an effort to achieve compliance; or may 
respond to Recipient's request for a meeting after the Recipient has made timely submission 
of a written explanation pursuant to the above. The meeting shall be requested no later than 
two days after the alleged violator has submitted the written explanation. 

6. Interviews Relating to Violations: The City may conduct interviews and may request 
additional information from appropriate parties as is considered necessary to determine 
whether the alleged violation has occurred.

` 

7. Determination of Violation: The City shall issue a determination of whether the Recipient 
is in violation of this agreement as soon as possible but not later than thirty days after the 
delivery of the Violation Notice to the Recipient. If the City determines that the Recipient 
is in violation, the City shall be entitled to the liquidated damages provided below. 

VIII. Liquidated Damages/Interest: · 

While reserving any other remedies the City may have at law or equity for a material breach 
of the above terms and conditions, the parties agree that damages for violations of this agreement

_ 

by the Recipient cannot be calculated within any reasonable degree of mathematical certainty. 
Therefore, the parties agree that upon the occurrence of a material breach of any ofthe above terms 
and conditions and after notice and expiration of any period to correct the violation, the City will be 
entitled to liquidated damages from the Recipient in the following amounts: 

a) failure to file Initial Mamring Reports (Construction Jobs) or PrejHiring Notification 
(Permanent Jobs) or Pre—Contracting Notification (Business Contracting): an amount 
equal to a Five (5%) percent increase in the estimated annual payment in lieu of 
taxes; 

b) failure to conduct Pre—hiring Interviews or submit Compliance Statement 
(Construction Jobs) or Solicit Bids (Business Contracting): an amount equal to Three 
(3%) percent increase in the estimated annual payment in lieu of taxes;

I 

c)

J 

failure to allow record or work place access or submit any other required reports (all 
‘ 

categories): an amount equal to Two (2%) percent increase in the estimated annual 
payment in lieu of taxes.

` 

d) the use ofthe local or local minority business’ masthead for labor or work supplied 
by a non local or local minority vendor: An amount equal to Five (5%) percent 
increase in the estimated annual payment in lieu of taxes., Interest shall be charged 
on any damages at the legal rate of interest as calculated by the Tax Collector. 

e) the late payment of any liquidated sum shall accrue interest at the rate of 8%. 

—
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IX. Commercial Tenants at the Project Site: 

1. The Recipient shall send all tenants of commercial space within the Project Site a 
letter and a Tenant Employment Services Guide in the form attached as Appendix 
O. 

2.
l 

The Recipient shall solicit information from tenants of commercial space about the 
composition of the work force of each tenant. The information solicited will be

` 

q 

submitted to the Proj ect Employment & Contracting Monitor, which shall provide 
the Recipient with a questionnaire in the form attached as Appendix P. 

3. The Recipient will send the results of its solicitation to the Proj ect Employment& 
Contracting Monitor no later than October 31 of each year. 

4. The Recipient shall send all tenants of commercial space within the Proj ect Site a 
Supplier Alert Service Registration Package in the form attached as Appendix Q. 

X. Notices 

Any notice required hereunder to be sent by either party to the other, shall be sent by certified 
mail, return receipt requested, addressed as follows: 

1. When sent by the City to the Recipient it shall be addressed to: 

AHM Housing Associates IV, LLC ·

U

J 

c/o Pennrose Properties, LLC 1 

One Brewery Park 
1301 N. 31S' Street 

Philadelphia, PA 19121-4495 
Attn: Timothy I. Henkel, Vice President 

and 

Genova Burns Giantomasi & Webster 
494 Broad Street 

Newark, NJ 07102 i
·

l 

Attn: Elnardo J. Webster II, Esq. 

2. When sent by the Recipient to the City, it shall be addressed to: 

Proj ect Employment & Contracting Monitor 
Department of Administration 

Division of Economic Opportunity
, 

280 Grove Street- 1s' Floor
_ 

Jersey City, New Jersey 07302 

with separate copies to the Mayor and the Business Administrator; unless prior to
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giving 0f such notice, the City or the Recipient shall have notified the other in 
writing. 

XI. Adoption, Approval, Modification: 

This agreement shall take effect on the date that the Economic Incentive is approved by the 
Municipal Council. 

XII. Controlling Regulations and Laws: 

To the extent required by State and Federal Law and so long as the Entity discharges its Good 
Faith obligations under this agreement, the City agrees and acknowledges that the Recipient and its 
contractors are free to hire whomever they choose. If this agreement conflicts with any collective 
bargaining agreement, the City agrees to defer to such agreements so long as the Recipient provides

_ 

the City with a copy of the offending provision in the collective bargaining agreement. 

ATTEST: CITY OF JERSEY CITY 

Robert Byrne John Kelly 
City Clerk Business Administrator

‘

{ 

WITNESS: AHM HOUSING ASSOCIATES IV, LLC

I 

Secretary President
I 

`
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()rd111a11ce of the C1ty of Jersey C1ty, NJ. 
ORDINANCE Mo. 

_ 
ao. MAY us 2013 +.:1 

TITLE 
· 

it a»§M\\\\\i·= "W01/0% Q, 

Ordinance approving a 30 year tax exemption for an urban _|;| 
renewal mixed-income, mixed-use housing project to be O 2| ,-‘ lv 
constructed by AHM Housing Associates IV, LLC, an urban OQPO

‘ 

B 
.59}* 

renewal entity, pursuant to the Long Term Tax Exemption Law RAT 

N..l.S.A. 40A:20-l et seq. 

RECORD or COUNCIL votre 0M INTRODUCTION U L I ; | 
-O 

COUNCILPERSON AYE MAY M.Y 
[ 

COUNCILPERSON AYE MAY M.Y 
| 
c0uMcIu>Ens0M AYE MAY NV 

s0rr0tAMo ,/ --| GAUGHAN |55 T |BRENNAN ,/ 
FULOP KKK! LAVARR0 

LOPEZ IHKKI PLOHAPOSON |OOLEMAN IKXK 
_ J Indicates Vote N.V—Not Voting (Abstain) 

RECORD or COUNCIL VOTE T0 cI.osE Pueuc HEARING 
Councilperson moved, seconded by Councilperson to close RH. 

COUNCILPERSON AYE MAY M.Y 
| 

COUNCILPERSON AYE MAY M.Y 
[ 
COUNCILPERSON AYE MAY M.Y 

SENRNANB XIII EABGRAN KKKI BRENNAN 111 
LBBNNEEEY X11! FULOP 111 EAvARR¤ 111 
LOPEZ KKKI PLOPAPOSON |OOLEMAN 
./ Indicates Vote NV-Not Voting (Abstain) 

RECORD or COUNCIL VOTE 0M AmEMmvIEMrs, M= ANY
Z 

Councilperson moved to amend* Ordinance, seconded by Councilperson & adopted 
COUNCILPERSON AYE MAY M.Y 

| 

couMcIu>EnsoM AYE MAY M.Y 
_ | 

COUNCILPERSON AYE MAY M.Y 

B¤Er¤LANB XXII BABGRAN X11! BRENNAN 111 
BBNNEELY 1$1lRNBR |"LAVARR0 $$1 
LOPEZ XXII PLOPAPOSON X11!| EENAN 111 
./ Indicates Vote N.\L—Not Voting (Abstain) 

_ RECORD or FINAL c0uMcu. VOTE 
c0uMcItE~Ens0M AYE MAY M.Y 

| 

COUNCILPERSON AYE MAY M.Y 
| 
COUNCILPERSON AYE MAY M.Y 

SOTTOLANO XIII GANERAN X11 BRENNAN 111 
DONNELLY X11! FULOP |ELAVPPPO 111 
LOPEZ XXII PIOPAPOOON XXII| GO LEMAN 
/ Indicates Vote N.V—Not Voting (Abstain) 

Adopted on first reading ofthe Council of Jersey City, N.J. on 8 

Adopted on second and final reading after hearing on 

This is to certify that the foregoing Ordinance was adopted by APPROVED: 
the Municipal Council at its meeting on 

Robert Byrne, City Clerk PGTZEF M. BY‘€l'I¤Z:lIl, ,Council President 

*AmencIment(s); Date: A 

APPROVED: 

Jerramiah I Healy, Mayor 

Date 

Date to Mayor


